Strategy and Resources Committee
8 June 2020
7.30 pm
Virtual meeting

To all members of the Strategy and Resources Committee:Chair:
Vice-Chair:
Councillors:

Councillor Ruth Dombey
Councillor Jayne McCoy and Councillor Manuel Abellan
Jenny Batt, Sunita Gordon, Amy Haldane, Marian James,
Steve Penneck, Mo Saqib, Tim Crowley, Tom Drummond,
Neil Garratt, David Hicks, Holly Ramsey and Tim Foster

Substitutes:

Councillors Ben Andrew, David Bartolucci, Chris Williams,
Elliot Colburn, James McDermott-Hill, Param Nandha, Jillian Green
and Nick Mattey

This is a Council meeting held in public. Additional representations are at the invitation of the Chair
of the Committee. If you are a relevant organisation and you wish to submit representations on a
proposal contained within the reports to this agenda please submit a request via Committee
Services three working days before the meeting date.
This meeting will be recorded and made available on the Council’s website.
PLEASE NOTE: Any decision taken at this meeting does not become definitive until 10am on the
third working day after the meeting. Any four members of the Council may notify the Chief
Executive by then if they require a decision to be reviewed by the appropriate committee at its next
meeting. Please contact the Committee Services representative shown on the front page for
further information.

Helen Bailey
Chief Executive
29 May 2020

Enquiries to: Alexa Coates, Head of Committee and Management Support
Tel: 020 8770 4990 | Email: committeeservices@sutton.gov.uk

Copies of reports are available in large print on request

AGENDA

1.

Welcome and introductions

2.

Apologies for absence

3.

Declarations of interest

4.

Any urgent business
To consider any items which, in the view of the Chair, should be dealt with as a
matter of urgency because of special circumstances (in accordance with
S100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972).

5.

Minutes

1-4

To approve as a correct record the minutes and to confirm decisions taken at
the meeting held on 30 March 2020.

6.

Update on the Council’s Response to the COVID-19 Threat

5 - 36

This report follows on from the update on the Council’s Response to the
COVID-19 Threat report which was presented to Committee on 30 March, and
outlines the enormous efforts the Council has made to ensure existing services
(and new) services are delivered to the communities and businesses that need
them most during these difficult times.
7.

Finance Performance - 2019/20

37 - 62

The report covers the financial performance of the council and includes an
overview of the Council’s 2019/20 revenue and capital financial outturn.
8.

London Cancer Hub - Update
The London Cancer Hub is a key project for the Council and an important part
of our ‘Ambitious for Sutton’ vision. This report seeks authority to proceed with
the proposed next phase of development at the LCH, focused on the direct
delivery by the Council of a new innovation hub in an existing, Council owned
building on the site. The report also describes how the Council is taking
forward the learning from the procurement process initiated in 2019 and
explains how the project has been adapted in response to changing
circumstances.

63 - 68

9.

Education Update Report
The Local Area partnership of the London Borough of Sutton, education
settings and Cognus education services, parents and young people, Health
and other colleagues, is working collaboratively to ensure the best possible
outcomes for young people can be achieved. This effective Local Area
partnership work has resulted in significant improvements in the provision and
impact of services for children and young people with Special Educational
Needs and Disabilities (SEND). This report highlights the success as reported
in the recent Ofsted and the Care Quality Commission Revisit

10.

Exclusion of the public and press
The following motion should be moved, seconded and approved if the
committee wishes to exclude the public and press to deal with reports
revealing exempt information:
“That the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following items
of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in paragraph X Schedule 12A of the Local Government
Act 1972.”

69 - 82

This page is intentionally left blank

Reminder – Declaration of Interests
Members should consider the following interests and whether they have any they should
declare.
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the Authority at this
meeting and you have either declared it beforehand in the Register of Members’ Interests or
to the Monitoring Officer for entry in the Register you must state at this meeting that you have
such an interest and then withdraw from the room or chamber where the meeting is being held
whilst that business is considered.
Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the Authority at this
meeting and have not previously declared it you must declare the nature of that interest at this
meeting and then withdraw from the room or chamber where the meeting is being held whilst
that business is considered.
Other Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests
Where you have any other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any business at this
meeting you must declare that interest, but may continue to speak and vote on the matter.
However, if the interest is one which a member of the public, with knowledge of the relevant
facts, would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of
the public interest then you should declare the interest and withdraw from the room or
chamber where the meeting is being held whilst that business is considered.
Further information on these matters can be found in the Council's Code of Conduct and
Constitution. If you are in any doubt as to whether you have an interest you should seek
advice before the committee meeting from Alexa Coates.
If, during the course of the committee meeting, you consider you may have an interest you
should always declare it.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 1

Agenda Item 5
Strategy and Resources Committee
30 March 2020

STRATEGY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE
30 March 2020 at 7.30 pm
MEMBERS:

Councillor Ruth Dombey (Chair), Councillor Jayne McCoy (Vice-Chair)
and Councillors Manuel Abellan, Richard Clifton, Sunita Gordon,
Amy Haldane, Marlene Heron, Marian James, Steve Penneck,
Tim Crowley, Neil Garratt, David Hicks, Holly Ramsey, Tom Drummond
and Tim Foster

36. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS
The Chair, Councillor Ruth Dombey, welcomed those present to the meeting which was
being held virtually due to public health concerns.

37. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies for absence.

38. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

39. MINUTES
RESOLVED: the minutes of the meeting held on 10 February 2020 were agreed as a
correct record, to be signed by the Chair at a later date.

40. ANY URGENT BUSINESS
The Chair accepted ‘Urgency Procedures and Decision Continuity’ and ‘Update on the
Council’s Response to the COVID-19 Threat’ as urgent for the reasons set out in the
reports.

42. URGENCY PROCEDURES AND DECISION CONTINUITY
The Chair highlighted to members a suggested amended urgency procedure, which
included consultation with the Opposition, had been circulated. The Chief Executive
introduced the report.
RESOLVED:
1. That the Decision Continuity Procedures, as amended, will be implemented urgently
in response to the current situation.

1

Agenda Item 5

Page 2
Strategy and Resources Committee
30 March 2020

2. That the Urgency Committee, be established as a sub-committee of the Strategy and
Resources Committee.
3. That it be recommended to Council to retrospectively adopt the Decision Continuity
Procedures as part of the Constitution as Article 14.

42. UPDATE ON THE COUNCIL’S RESPONSE TO THE COVID-19 THREAT
The Chief Executive introduced the report. The Chair advised of some typographical errors
in the report at paragraph 1.2 which should have said 30 March and at the bullet points at
4.3 should have said taking back control of our leisure centres. In response to questions the
Chief Executive advised that there were a high level of volunteers and that supplies of
Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) were currently being well managed in Sutton
RESOLVED:
1.

That the actions detailed in this report be noted and endorsed

2.

That it be noted the Council will continue to act in support of the national effort

43. THE CONSTITUTION AND SUPPORTING ENGAGEMENT
The Chief Executive introduced the report.
RESOLVED:
1.

That the work already undertaken in reviewing Local Committees be noted

2.

That the terms of reference for the next phase of the review be agreed and that the
Deputy Leader and Local Committee Chairs be tasked to oversee the Local
Committee Review with a report back to Strategy and Resources in 12 months.

3.

That the Approach to Engagement as set out at Appendix A be agreed

4.

That the next phase of the Constitutional Review be noted

44. GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS FOR ALLOCATING AND SPENDING THE
NEIGHBOURHOOD PORTION OF COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY
RECEIPTS (NCIL)
The Interim Strategic Director, Environment, Housing and Regeneration, introduced the
report. Members discussed the consultation timelines set out in the report and the inevitable
delay due to the current circumstances and amended the resolution to reflect that. Members
also considered the progress of the Beddington North Neighbourhood Forum and Officers
explained support would be given to assist their progress.

2

Page 3

Agenda Item 5
Strategy and Resources Committee
30 March 2020

RESOLVED:
That the governance arrangements for the selection and funding of projects for the
Neighbourhood portion of the Sutton Community Infrastructure Levy (NCIL) to be
implemented as outlined in paragraphs 4.4 - 4.6 of the report, noting the impact of the
timescales in light of the current emergency situation

45. IMPROVING HEALTHCARE TOGETHER
The Chair introduced the report. Members discussed if there was any possibility of the
consultation period being extended and proposed an additional resolution in relation to that.
Members also debated the implications on the long term sustainability of St Helier hospital
under the options proposed in the consultation and the transport links of both sites.
Cllr Garratt proposed a revised recommendation - That we support the government’s plans
for a new local acute care hospital, we support either the Sutton or St Helier sites, and we
will support the NHS in evaluating which of those would provide the best long term care for
Sutton’s residents. Cllr Hicks seconded the amendment which was put to the vote and lost.
The original recommendation was put to the vote and carried
RESOLVED
1.

That the proposed model for service delivery as set out the IHT consultation, i.e. a
single specialist emergency hospital and two district hospitals, be endorsed.

2.

That the Leader of the Council writes to the local NHS requesting that the
consultation be extended for a period of 3 months to give residents more time to
respond in light of the Covid 19 crisis.

3.

That the benefits and issues with both the Sutton and St Helier sites be noted and
that the option to site the specialist emergency treatment hospital at St Helier be
agreed as the preferred option of the Council.

46. ITEMS REFERRED BY HOUSING ECONOMY AND BUSINESS COMMITTEE
The Chair invited the Chair of the Housing Economy and Business Committee to introduce
the items referred by that Committee. The following items were approved as set out in the
Housing Economy and Business Committee agenda for the cancelled meeting which had
been scheduled to take place on 24 March 2020





Approval of Homelessness Strategy
Adoption of the Affordable Housing and Financial Viability SPD
Agreement to consult on options for the future of Beech Tree Place
Agreement of enforcement policy for Protecting Private Tenants

3

Agenda Item 5

Page 4
Strategy and Resources Committee
30 March 2020

47. ITEMS REFERRED BY THE PEOPLE COMMITTEE
The Chair invited the Chair of the People Committee to introduce the item referred by that
Committee. The following item was approved as set out in the People Committee agenda for
the cancelled meeting which had been scheduled to take place on 26 March 2020
 Pupil based Planning

The meeting ended at 8.45 pm

Chair:
Date:

4

Page 5

Agenda Item 6

Report to:

Strategy and Resources Committee

Report title:

Update on the Council’s Response to COVID-19

Report from:

Helen Bailey, Chief Executive

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough-wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:

Councillor Ruth Dombey, Leader of the Council

Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):

Helen Bailey, Chief Executive

Corporate Plan
Priorities:

Open/Exempt:
Signed:

●
●
●
●

Date:

8 June 2020

Being Active
Making Informed Choices
Living Well Independently
Keeping People Safe

Open
Date:

29 May 2020

1.

Summary

1.1

In this extraordinary public health situation, we remain Ambitious for Sutton. The Council is
focused upon:
● Supporting the local NHS to manage the situation;
● Maintaining those essential services for which we are responsible;
● Sustaining the services which support the viability of the community;
● Working with partners to support those who are rendered more vulnerable or newly
vulnerable by the situation; and
● Starting to plan for recovery taking into account government guidance and local
priorities.

1.2

This report follows on from the update on the Council’s Response to the COVID-19 Threat
report which was presented to Committee on 30 March, and outlines the enormous efforts the
Council has made to ensure existing services (and new) services are delivered to the
communities and businesses that need them most during these difficult times.

1.3

The report reflects that (in line with the early changes nationally to the lockdown) the Council is
thinking and planning for recovery and transition.

Agenda Item 6

Page 6

1.4

Every service the Council delivers has been impacted by the current situation. The report
provides details on these impacts, how the Council has responded to the current situation, new
services the Council has set up to support our community and the high level costs associated
(to date) with our response.

1.5

The Coronavirus Act 2020 received Royal Assent on 25th March. The Act contains ‘emergency
powers’ to enable public bodies to respond to the COVID-19 pandemic, one of the
consequences of which is the active coordination of the public service effort across London
including in Sutton. This Council is continuing to play its full part responding to all requests from
the government in terms of changes to services and data being collected.

1.6

All information is correct as of 28th May.

2.

Recommendations

2.1

To note and endorse the actions detailed in this report.

2.2

To agree the COVID-19 Discretionary Business Grant Fund for Sutton (Appendix B).

2.3

To note the mechanism for administration of additional care market funding (Section 6.13).

2.4

To support the response to London-wide work to prioritise walking and cycling in London and
facilitate social distancing in our streets and open spaces as described in Section 5.17-5.19 and
to seek proposals for longer term changes to the road network in line with the principles set out
in Section 5.17.

3.

Local Context

3.1

Sutton appears to have come through the initial peak in COVID-19 cases. As of 4pm on 27th
May, 739 Sutton residents have tested positive for COVID-19, equivalent to 361 people per
100,000 of the population1. Sadly, 201 residents are known to have died from COVID-192. This
includes confirmed cases, and people with ‘possible’ COVID-19. Sutton has a high number of
care homes (79), of which the majority have had no outbreaks. Further details on how we have
been supporting care homes can be found in Section 6.11-6.13.

3.2

Sutton Council is working with other public agencies locally, regionally and nationally to ensure
a robust response to the spread of COVID-19, and in support of the Government’s attempts to
manage the spread of the disease.

3.3

Sutton Council, like all of the London Boroughs, is part of the network of public services in
London. London Local Authority Gold has been given special status by the government and
there is a Strategic Coordination Group co-ordinating the emergency services, health agencies,
voluntary and faith sector, and utility companies, into a London-wide response.

1
2

Coronavirus in the UK, 28th May 2020 (https://coronavirus.data.gov.uk/)
Local data from death registrations, 28th May

Page 7

Agenda Item 6

3.4

Council leaders are being consulted through the London Councils route and regular phone calls
with Government have involved both Leaders and Chief Executives of all Councils.

3.5

Locally, the Council’s Borough Resilience Forum, made up of all public service providers within
Sutton has met regularly to ensure coordination of services over the period of the emergency.

4.

National and Regional Context

4.1

As of 4pm on 27th May, 150,903 people have tested positive for coronavirus in England,
equivalent to 270 people per 100,000 of the population3. It is estimated that 137,000 people
were infected between 4th and 17th May4.

4.2

There have been 33,362 fatalities amongst people who have tested positive in England5. Deaths
amongst people from minority ethnic backgrounds, and lower socio-economic groups have been
disproportionately higher than the rest of the population. Work is being done to understand why
this might be the case; in London it is being led by Professor Kevin Fenton on behalf of Public
Health England.

4.3

London has been the worst affected regions in England (to date) with 26,867 (302 people per
100,000 of the population) confirmed cases6.

4.4

On 3rd March, the government adopted a four stage approach to help respond to the
coronavirus through the first phase7:
● Contain: detect early cases, follow up close contacts, and prevent the disease taking
hold in this country for as long as is reasonably possible;
● Delay: slow the spread in this country, if it does take hold, lowering the peak impact
and pushing it away from the winter season;
● Research: better understand the virus and the actions that will lessen its effect on the
UK population; innovate responses including diagnostics, drugs and vaccines; use the
evidence to inform the development of the most effective models of care;
● Mitigate: provide the best care possible for people who become ill, support hospitals to
maintain essential services and ensure ongoing support for people ill in the community
to minimise the overall impact of the disease on society, public services and on the
economy.

4.5

Through March, the Government put in place a series of measures to contain and delay the
spread of COVID-19. On 16th March, the Government requested people avoid non-essential
travel and contact. 1.5 million people with serious underlying health conditions were identified,
and advised to ‘shield’ for 12 weeks. On the 20th March, entertainment, hospitality and indoor
leisure venues were closed. This was followed by a series of additional measures to further
reduce the spread through the Coronavirus Bill on 23rd March, including the requirement for
people to stay at home, unless travelling to and from essential work which could not be done

3

Coronavirus in the UK, 28th May 2020 (https://coronavirus.data.gov.uk/)
Coronavirus (COVID-19) Infection Survey pilot: England, 21st May 2020 (ONS.gov.uk)
5
Coronavirus in the UK, 28th May 2020 (https://coronavirus.data.gov.uk/)
6
Coronavirus in the UK, 28th May 2020 (https://coronavirus.data.gov.uk/)
7
Coronavirus action plan: a guide to what you can expect across the UK, 3rd March 2020 (gov.uk)
4

Agenda Item 6

Page 8

from home, for medical needs, or for one form of exercise a day. Schools were closed to most
children, other than children of key workers, and vulnerable children. Non-essential shops were
required to close.
4.6

The impact of these measures on people’s livelihoods has been significant. As of 24th May, 8.4
million people in the UK have been furloughed, from 1 million employers8, and between 16th
March and 19th May, 2.8 million households made claims for Universal Credit9.

4.7

The Government is now in the early stages of exiting phase one of the response (contain, delay,
research and mitigate), and has published a COVID-19 recovery strategy. The aim at the centre
of the plan is to:
‘Return to life as close to normal as possible, for as many people as possible, as fast and fairly
as possible, in a way that avoids a new epidemic, minimises lives lost and maximises health,
economic and social outcomes’.
The Government will consider three main factors in doing this10:
● Health effect: direct COVID-19 mortality, indirect harms arising from NHS emergency
services being overwhelmed, increases in mortality or other ill health as a result of
measures taken to respond to the coronavirus, and the long-term health effects of any
increase in deprivation as a result of the economic impacts of measures taken;
● Economic effect: the number of people who can return to work safely, the country’s
long-term economic future, the sustainability of public finances, financial stability, and
the effects of of the Government’s measures of different socio-economic groups,
businesses, and regions;
● Social effect: the number of education days children lose, the fairness of Government
measures on those most impacted by social distancing (considering, for example,
mental health, domestic abuse, online fraud), the strength of public services to support
the most vulnerable people.

4.8

The second phase of the Government’s response
existing social controls with smarter measures,
transmission. This phase will be in place until
treatment’. This will be through a vaccine, or
manageable levels.

4.9

In practice, the Government’s recovery strategy means that:
●

●

8

is ‘Smarter controls’, seeking to replace the
whilst being reactive to any rise in virus
the UK can reach phase three; ‘Reliable
other treatments, to reduce the virus to

From 13th May, people in England who cannot work from home can travel to certain
types of workplaces. People can also spend more time outdoors, subject to certain
restrictions, and travel to open spaces;
Planning is underway for the phased return of some children to school and childcare
settings on 1st June. Initially, primary schools in England will open for all children in

HMRC coronavirus (COVID-19) statistics, 27th May 2020 (gov.uk)
Universal Credit declarations (claims) and advances: management information, 26th May 2020 (gov.uk)
10
Our plan to rebuild: The UK Government’s COVID-19 recovery strategy, 11th May 2020 (gov.uk)
9

Page 9

●
●

Agenda Item 6

Reception, Year 1, and Year 6, in addition to vulnerable children, and children of key
workers. The Government is aiming for all primary school-aged children to return to
school for a month before the summer break, if risk assessments indicate that it is
appropriate. Secondary schools will also be asked to provide some face-to-face
support for pupils in Years 10 and 12 to supplement their remote education. Schools
will be expected to put in place protective measures to reduce risks;
In addition, from 1st and then the the 15th June, some non-essential shops will be
allowed to open, with additional cleaning and social distancing measures in place;
Further adjustments to the current restrictions are scheduled to take place from 4th
July, subject to risk assessment. This could include opening some of the remaining
businesses that have been required to close (e.g. places of worship, leisure facilities,
hospitality and personal care). Businesses will be required to put in place additional
cleaning measures, and enable social distancing. It is likely this will be phased, to test
whether businesses can adopt these measures.

4.10 To reflect current patterns of travel, and allow physical distancing to take place in high priority,
or high traffic areas, a number of cities (including parts of London) have introduced temporary
infrastructure to reallocate road space for pedestrians and cyclists. This includes closing roads
to through traffic, creating additional footpath space, improving cycle facilities, or lowering speed
limits, to ensure the safety of residents.
4.11 The measures put in place by the Government required Sutton Council to put in place support
for residents and businesses, including those prescribed by the Government, such as the
Business Support Grant, as well as discretionary measures, such identifying residents who are
likely to be at increased risk of financial hardship as a result of the measures put in place to
manage the coronavirus, and proactively contacting them to outline the support available. See
Section 6 for updates from each of the workstreams under the COVID-19 programme.
5.

Impact on Service Delivery

5.1

In response to the COVID-19 threat, we are continuing to focus on protecting our community
and supporting our most vulnerable residents, and our key workers, to keep safe and reduce the
spread of infection. Business continuity plans have been put to the test and staff have risen to
the challenge to provide a flexible approach in constantly changing circumstances.

5.2

The Council has taken responsive action, changing services and closing facilities to the public,
taking into account government’s guidance where appropriate. Some of those steps have been
taken in response to the requirements of social distancing and ensuring that Council facilities
are not providing incentives for people to gather in potentially unsafe groups. Others are
designed to support the work of our colleagues and to allow our own staff to focus their efforts
and energies on the most crucial activities at this time, when all Council staff are under
pressure.

5.3

Some services which are not essential in current circumstances have been reduced or put on
hold, especially where those services cannot easily safely be delivered. These actions have

Agenda Item 6

Page 10

been made within the scheme of delegation, or the emergency procedures set out in the
constitution. Set out in Section 5.7-5.22 are the key changes that have been put in place.
5.4

The Council has received additional funding to support residents and businesses impacted by
the current situation. This money has been distributed to those people that need it as quickly as
possible, in line with Government guidance.

5.5

Building on the Sutton Plan partnership, the Council has worked closely with all of its partners
including the voluntary sector, health partners and providers. Sutton has a long history of
excellent partnership working and it is these strong partnerships that have enabled all public
service providers in the borough to come together and meet the needs of the population
especially those most vulnerable to COVID-19. Where the need for additional funding or
resources has been identified, the Council has taken steps to quickly put this into place.

5.6

Over the last ten weeks the Council, through taking early, considered actions, has been able to
maintain many key services to residents and businesses.

5.7

Household waste collection (including recycling, food and garden waste) has continued. These
services have continued to operate well. Initially some amendments were made to bulky
collections, but all services are now operating.

5.8

Parks have remained open, and in the main have been used responsibly. Guidance has been
provided for residents on how to stay safe whilst using them, updated in line with government
advice. Car parks have been closed for the Easter and early May bank holiday weekends to
avoid them being a destination.

5.9

Street cleaning services have been maintained, although there has been a reduction in
requirement for the service as a result of social distancing measures. This will be monitored as
measures are lifted.

5.10 Library services have moved completely online with the delivery of online activities and
resources including Rhymetime through Facebook, The Locals: Diaries project, Ebooks, Digital
Newspapers, and online membership for new joiners.
5.11 All offices except Civic have been temporarily closed. Limited reception provision is in place for
those who absolutely need to visit in person, and particularly for homeless people being
supported by Encompass.
5.12 The Council closed and took control of all leisure centres to provide other vital services including
the food hub that has operated out of Westcroft, delivering food to those who urgently need it.
5.13 As of 13th May, the Household Reuse and Recycle Centre (HRRC) reopened, with visits to the
site strictly by appointment only, to ensure the centre runs safely, and in accordance with
Government guidelines.

Page 11

Agenda Item 6

5.14 All non-essential face-to-face registration (including births) have been suspended in line with
guidance both to facilitate social distancing, and to focus on the requirement to additional
register deaths. As a result weddings and civil partnership ceremonies have been postponed.
5.15 Bandon Hill and Sutton cemeteries are open in the afternoon and early evening through the
week, and all day at the weekend, following a short period when they were closed at the height
of the crisis to allow for social distancing. Families have been limiting the number of mourners to
between six and ten at the graveside. The Chapel has been closed, as it is too small to allow
social distancing.
5.16 Schools have been kept open to serve vulnerable children and the children of key workers
(further detail provided in 6.21). We are now working with schools to facilitate re-opening for
designated year groups from 1st June. Home to school transport has been provided to enable
vulnerable children and children of key workers to be able to access education provision.
5.17 Transport for London (TfL) has announced that all Local Implementation Plans (LIP) allocations
for 20/21 are suspended.
There will be no announcements this year on Liveable
Neighbourhoods bids. Instead, TfL have created a £45 million fund for boroughs (for six
months) to bid into to deliver projects in line with new TfL ‘Streetspace for London’ guidance,
focussed on boosting safety for people walking and cycling and aiding social distancing. Bids
need to be submitted by late June.
5.18

Some of this work involves immediate, temporary changes to street layouts to aid social
distancing and improve road safety. The initial tranche of this work has already been
implemented.. Retrospective bids to TfL will be made for these short term measures with the
expectation that funding will be received. If these bids are not supported then any works
already undertaken will need to be funded from within existing budgets. All these temporary
changes are low cost in nature.

5.19 Medium term proposals for the next six months will be brought to Strategy and Resources
Committee in July. Such measures are likely to include lower cost versions of existing LIP or
Liveable Neighbourhood proposals, or new proposals that have been developed in light of the
Streetspace guidance. Examples will include improved pedestrian and cycle facilities and
proposals to create low traffic neighbourhoods. Enforcement of all non-safety related parking
restrictions has been suspended for three months until the end of June.
5.20 The option to defer Council Tax payments for two months has been put in place, so payments
can be spread over June to March rather than April to January. To date 1,800 households have
taken up this offer.
5.21 In addition to the business support schemes that have been put in place (see Section 6.54-6.60)
to support local business and voluntary and community sector organisations operating from
Council buildings rent payments were suspended for 3 months for around 70 organisations.
5.22 As the government has started to relax some social distancing measures, the Council has
begun to re-open some services and facilities in line with government guidance on additional

Page 12

Agenda Item 6

safeguards, and where it is considered safe to do so. The Council will continue to closely
monitor government guidance and will work with our local partners and other London boroughs
as appropriate to re-open services as it is safe to do so.
6.

Workstream Updates

6.1

The Council’s response to COVID-19 has been structured around a classic Emergency
Planning approach, with regular Gold meetings supported by a number of key workstreams.
Each workstream has a strategic lead who is responsible for ensuring that the workstream is
delivered and any issues are resolved and / or escalated where appropriate.

6.2

The response has been (and continues to be) overseen at a strategic level by the Council’s
Gold group (chaired by the Council’s Chief Executive, comprising the corporate Management
Team other key officers), and at an operational level by a Silver group made up of the Director
of Public Health and operational leads for each workstream. Sutton Housing Partnership (SHP),
Encompass and Cognus have been working very closely with the council and in recent weeks
their Chief Executives have been attending gold meetings. The response has been coordinated
by Emergency Planning and the Council’s Programme Management Office.

6.3

Set out in the following sections are updates for each workstream, setting out the scope of each,
what has been achieved to date, key challenges and priorities going forward. All workstreams
have been delivered in partnership with key public service providers across Sutton. The
workstreams are as follows:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Health and Social Care
Education
Communications
Workforce
Excess Deaths
Community Hub and Voluntary sector
Housing
Business Support

Health and Social Care
Children’s Social Care
6.4

In response to COVID-19, and to ensure that all statutory responsibilities have continued to be
delivered and essential services maintained, a senior management coordination group was
formed, consisting of representatives from Children’s Social Care, Education, Schools (through
Designated Safeguarding representatives) and Health. The work has primarily focused on:
●

Risk assessing all children open to children’s social care (over 1,200), and working in
partnership with schools to seek assurance on vulnerable children, including those with
Education Health and Care Plans (EHCPs), not attending school;

Page 13

●
●
●

●
●

●
●
●

6.5

Agenda Item 6

Mobilising the workforce to respond to priority statutory responsibilities; including
remote working, daily roll call, virtual meetings (including child protection conferences);
Reviewing the Early Help service, leading to a dynamic response where practitioners
supported other key service requirements;
A partnership approach has been taken, consisting of Children’s Social Care,
Education, Cognus, Schools, and Health. The group oversees performance and
communication across the network;
Ensuring placement sufficiency would meet the needs of Sutton’s children in care.
Implementing contingency plans for increase in demand and reduction of provision,
such as developing a “back up” provision that could have been utilised for a residential
children’s home;
Sutton’s Care Leavers have been supported with an increased weekly allowance to
help with access to transport and weekly shopping;
Coordinating the provision of IT equipment for vulnerable children so they can continue
to access education;
Quality Assuring services by developing further performance reporting and undertaking
two audits; the first on the Children’s First Contact Service, and the second on the risk
assessments completed by children’s social care.

Plans are being developed to enable more face-to-face contact soon. This will ensure the
service can respond to an anticipated increase in demand when children return to school.

Adult’s Social Care
6.6

All statutory responsibilities continue to have been delivered, and the service has additionally
focused on the priorities of supporting the local NHS, ensuring vulnerable people are
safeguarded, and their essential services are maintained.

6.7

In response to COVID-19, an Adult’s Coordination group was formed, consisting of
representatives from across the Council and key partners including Encompass. Further to this,
coordinating meetings already in place with NHS and other partner agencies were extended to
support and manage the collaborative response.

6.8

Business continuity plans were implemented; where possible staff moved to home working,
undertaking duties virtually. Services providing care (START), supporting hospital discharge
and emergency duty maintained a presence at the Civic Offices and St Helier Hospital, from
which they go out and work with people in their homes. The START team has also been
working to support care homes where necessary.

6.9

Risk assessments have been undertaken for all adults living in the community receiving a social
care package of care.

6.10 As a local health and care system, the local care market has been supported through:
●
●

The provision of emergency personal protective equipment;
Webinars, providing advice and support on emerging guidance;

Agenda Item 6

●
●
●
●
●

Page 14

Ensuring access to testing for both residents and staff;
Weekly Newsletters to all care providers;
Additional financial support;
Weekly phone calls to all providers, to understand challenges and work with them to
resolve;
Enhanced operational support, increased from 5 days, to 7 days a week.

6.11 Since the outbreak of COVID-19, the Council and the Sutton Health and Care system has been
working closely with all care homes in the borough to understand capacity, ensure they are
following all necessary guidance and to resolve issues as they come up. On 14th May, the
Government announced the requirement of local authorities to review or put in place a care
home support plan. The Council, with its partners, has already put in place a number of plans,
setting out how the local care market will be supported. These plans are reviewed periodically,
and will be used to complete the government mandated template by 29th May. Locally, the
planning return will be developed with the South West London CCG, and engagement with
Sutton Health and Care Executive which includes representation of Health and Wellbeing Board
members.
6.12 We recognised early that our care market would need additional financial support through the
early part of COVID-19. As a council we altered payment terms to ensure adequate cash flow
and committed over £400,000 in additional one-off payments to the market (this is inline with the
principles set out in the LGA advice on provider payments). So far £320,000 has been released
to providers.
6.13 The Council are continually working with care homes to plan, review, respond and improve our
ways of working to ensure residents and staff have everything they need to be safe and provide
high quality services. As a result the majority of Care Homes have remained Covid-19 free to
date. On Friday 15th May, the Government announced that an extra £2.1m has been allocated
to Sutton as part of the Infection Prevention Control Fund. 75% of this funding is mandated to
be diverted directly to care homes, with local discretion for the remaining 25%. The Council and
its partners, are in the process of developing a plan for the allocation of the additional 25%.
6.14 Social care teams continue to oversee safeguarding, including Deprivation of Liberty
Safeguards (DoLS), and work in partnership with other agencies to proactively protect the most
vulnerable and monitor those at the highest risk, as identified through RAG ratings. Social care
teams are continuing to manage the safeguarding demand as "business as usual". Additional
management oversight has been put in place to ensure timely management.
6.15 The service continues to work with the Joint Intelligence Group (JIG), including partners from
the CCG, to provide daily oversight to review the information submitted by providers onto the
Association of Directors of Adult Social Services (ADASS) Market insight tracker to identify
potential risks and areas for support to care homes and other care providers. Ongoing
compliance is ensured through regular monitoring, and action taken if required.

Page 15

Agenda Item 6

6.16 Oversight of DoLS is integrated into the JIG meetings, considering restrictions placed on
residents as a result of COVID-19. The DoLS lead links in with staff from the Care Home
Support Team to undertake joint visits, where necessary.
6.17 The Council has worked in partnership to support the local NHS to manage the situation, key
activities have been:
●

●

●

●
●

Working collaboratively on-site in St Helier to support safe discharge from hospital
through the creation of the St Helier 'Hub' base by merging of the Sutton Health &
Care, Sutton Continuing Health Care (CHC: SWL CCG) and Local Authority Hospital
Pathway Social Work teams;
Ensuring there are no delays to hospital discharge through daily tracking and
monitoring of all admissions through Multi-Disciplinary Team (MDT) leads in the ‘Hub’
(inclusive of Sutton residents in out of borough hospitals);
Applying the Home First Principle in all cases, taking account of social circumstance
and ability to be cared for at home to self-isolate and or shielding for the individual and
or anyone else living in the same property as required;
Ongoing tracking, monitoring and reviews for all interim step-down placements,
collectively across agencies (Local Authority / SWL CCG);
The START service continues to provide short term care and reablement service,
facilitating discharge from hospital. Redeployees have been recruited from other
Directorates to support the service in the event of increased demand.

6.18 Plans are being developed for the next phases of the response, balancing the need for
increased face to face meetings with residents, and protecting the most vulnerable from risk of
infection.
Education
6.19 On 23rd March, schools were closed to all pupils other than vulnerable pupils (those pupils
whose parents have an EHCP or have a social worker). Up until 12th May attendance at
schools within these cohorts has been based on an assessment of whether a pupil can safely
remain at home (for reasons such as an underlying health condition), or whether attendance at
school would be in the child’s best interests.
6.20 Daily attendance data from schools shows that total numbers of pupils started at about 1,000
(out of circa 40,000 overall) reducing to about 230, excluding bank holidays, increasing back up
to just under 900. Attendance figures in Sutton are in line with Borough averages across London
both in terms of total number of pupils as well as the proportions of pupils that are vulnerable in
attendance.
6.21 Throughout this period there has been excellent partnership working taking place between
children’s social care, Cognus, and designated safeguarding leads in schools. All vulnerable
pupils have had regular contact from professionals both from school and social work
professionals; Cognus staff have called every family of the 1,850 pupils in the Borough with an
EHCP. To coordinate key activities, including the Council’s approach to communications, Free

Agenda Item 6

Page 16

School Meals, provision of laptops to disadvantaged pupils, and other COVID-19 related
activities, a Headteacher coordination group was convened early on in the response period.
6.22 The Government announced on 11th May a phased return for education provision across
England. We recognise the importance of education and that for some schools social distancing
will be difficult. The focus is no longer about pupils remaining at home where it is safe to do so,
but rather pupils now being in school unless it would not be safe to do so. All early years
settings have been asked to prepare to open from 1st June and for primary schools Reception,
Year 1 and Year 6 are to be back in school in ‘smaller sizes’, from this point also (in addition to
vulnerable pupils). Secondary schools and further education colleges are being asked to
prepare for some face to face contact with those Year 10 and 12 pupils who have key exams
next year, to support their continued remote learning.
6.23 The return of schools for some year groups is a positive development and a step back towards
normality, but it requires significant planning, particularly on the part of primary schools. Officers
are working closely with representatives of the Regional Schools Commissioner to support
schools in their preparations however the majority of planning work will be undertaken by Senior
Leadership Teams and Governing Bodies in Schools, including where appropriate providing
public health advice can be sought.
6.24 All of the preparatory work required is being taken forward by senior leadership teams in
schools. Colleagues from Cognus and the Council are supporting all schools regardless of type
working collaboratively to develop plans, share problems / solutions and coordinate activities.
Schools are currently liaising with parents to assess levels of likely demand in order to inform
their preparations. At the time of writing all schools in Sutton have plans to open on (or shortly
after 1st June).
Excess Deaths
6.25 Throughout the Crisis, focus has been to protect the NHS. One of the key areas that has been
planned for is an increase in volume and frequency of people dying from the disease. Like all
Councils we were required to plan for a much greater increase than has in fact been the case.
The Council has played an active role in the London Mortality Planning Group which is working
to ensure that the capacity is available to manage the consequences of a predicted increase in
deaths. The workstream was initially set up to plan for a worst case scenario in which deaths
outstripped the ability of normal processes (registration, mortuary capacity,
funeral
management, cemetery and crematorium provision) to cope.
6.26 Fortunately, to date, the Borough’s existing arrangements have been found to be sufficient. The
purpose has therefore been to coordinate information, identify risks and resolve operational
issues in response to the London wide picture. This has involved multi agency working and
sensitive liaison with faith groups.
6.27 Building links to partners in the death management process, such as funeral directors, cemetery
operational contractors, and St Helier Hospital has been key to gathering relevant and accurate
information to aid decision making. The work primarily focused on:

Page 17

●

●
●

Agenda Item 6

Ensuring all affected service areas are kept abreast of the complex variations in
government guidance and legislation including liaising with the local fragmented
Funeral Director sector and assessing where it might be necessary to intervene;
Responding to changes in demand and resilience concerns, including recruitment of
redeployed staff and opening a second Registrar’s Office at Civic;
Working with our partners to ensure that there is capacity to increase the number of
burials that can be carried out.

6.28 The workstream also worked closely with faith and belief groups across the borough, ensuring
the local death management process was understood, and any issues could be raised.
Community Hub
6.29 In response to the commitment to “shield” the most vulnerable, a Community Hub was set up,
and has been in operation since March. The Hub operates through referrals made from
Government and NHS data lists, contact via the Council’s website and contact centre, or from
the voluntary sector and partners. The NHS has identified 7,775 people in Sutton whose
medical conditions are such that they are at greatest risk of becoming seriously ill. The Hub can
also be accessed by anyone in Sutton who needs help or support during this period.
6.30 The Community Hub aims to provide the right support at the right time, to the right people. This
is done through proactive calls to residents on the Government or NHS data lists. A helpline,
self-referral online form, and specific inbox for COVID-19 queries, operates 7 days a week. A
triage process is in place where requests for help are either passed to the voluntary sector
(befriending, shopping, medication, emergency food, etc.), Social Care team, or Welfare Reform
team (maximisation of benefits).
6.31 Food distribution is organised from Westcroft Leisure Centre. Food is sourced from a mix of
supermarkets and wholesalers. Food distribution takes place on Saturdays, staffed by 35
redeployed Council staff. 20 volunteers pack food parcels, which are delivered to residents by a
team of 90+ volunteer drivers.
6.32 The Hub is staffed by 70+ redeployees from the Council’s workforce who have volunteered to
work on call handling, triage and food supply. The Council is also working with the voluntary
sector to co-ordinate the help and support available and those in the community who are
generously volunteering their time and talent to support the national effort.
6.33 As of 28th May, fulfillment of referrals and requests for support from the Hub is as follows:
●

●

5,578 shielding individuals contacted and triaged:
○ 4,570 don’t require support
○ 1000 are receiving the support they require from the Council
879 non-shielding helpline support requests all of which have been assessed
and are receiving the support they require.

Agenda Item 6

Page 18

6.34 The Community Hub has become increasingly important in ensuring that those in greatest need
get the food, essential supplies, welfare and social support that they need. The Hub was
established at pace to meet an emergency need. A longer-term, sustainable Community Hub
model could provide a multi-agency and multi-disciplinary service between the Council and
voluntary sector partners, to meet ongoing need exacerbated by the current health emergency,
relating to mental health, bereavement, wellbeing, financial support, access to social care and
support for unpaid carers.
6.35 The Digital team worked closely with the Hub to get the forms online to enable residents to
register for help. These have been continuously iterated and improved over time. In addition
we have also launched the ViaVan application to help manage food deliveries. This is an
Uber-like app that organises delivery routes for drivers, tracks deliveries and notifies the
recipient when the delivery is expected. This app has helped speed up the delivery rounds
(saving approximately 45 minutes per round of deliveries). Sutton is leading the way with this
technology in London and we will be sharing this approach with our colleagues across London
in due course.
6.36 Planning for future development of the Hub on this model has started. This consists of helping
residents being supported by the Hub to be resilient and independent again. Residents are
being supported to access online supermarket delivery slots or linking them with a volunteer
who can shop for them. Households facing financial crisis and who do not have the means to
pay for food are being assessed and referred for appropriate support (such as the Sutton
Foodbank).
6.37 In order to effectively support a whole range of resident needs as a result of COVID-19 and the
social distancing measures imposed a multi-agency and multi-disciplinary team has been set up
to triage all referrals for support. The triage team is made up of staff from the CCG, Community
Action Sutton, the Volunteer Centre Sutton, and welfare support to help with financial issues.
The team will shortly grow to include mental health and social care professionals, able to
respond without having to refer people on for the specialist support they need.
6.38 The focus of the hub going forward is to support people to become independent again and
access food themselves. The hub will also play a key role in the Council’s support for NHS test
and trace (see 8.1).
6.39 Funds have also been made available for a Hardship Fund, to provide Council Tax relief to
vulnerable people and households to help those affected most by COVID-19. The Sutton
allocation is £1.6m. Every working age claimant has received an award of £150 (or if the
amount they owe was less than £150, the full amount of their 2020/21 liability). To date 5,606
claimants have received awards and been sent revised bills reflecting the reduced amount they
owe. The total spend is currently £825,000.
Voluntary Sector
6.40 The voluntary sector workstream covers coordination of all activity relating to the Council and
the voluntary sector. From the voluntary sector this is led by Community Action Sutton, Age UK

Page 19

Agenda Item 6

Sutton and Volunteers Centre Sutton with significant input from other organisations. This
workstream covers all elements of support provided by the voluntary sector including:
●
●
●
●
●

Volunteers and drivers to staff the food hub;
Volunteers to deliver food and emergency medication;
Staff and expertise to work in a joint triage and referral service;
Social and emotional support;
Support to ward level / mutual aid groups.

6.41 The voluntary sector has been key to the Councils response and have been involved in the
planning and delivery of services from the outset. Where necessary the Council has provided
resources (funding and staff time) to ensure that voluntary sector organisations are resilient and
are able to respond to the increased demand placed on them. Additional funding has been
provided to Age UK Sutton and Sutton Volunteers Centre. This funding was initially agreed for
three months and is to be reviewed on a monthly basis thereafter.
6.42 The work between voluntary and community organisations and the Council is now well
integrated. Some Council staff are virtually seconded to work in voluntary organisations and
similarly voluntary sector staff are working in the triage team as a way of sharing learning and
embedding collaborative working. Conversations are now beginning about how we can build on
this way of working, with the aim of considering how we commission and work differently, to
ensure that it is maintained.
6.43 A COVID-19 Crisis Fund has been set up by Community Action Sutton. The fund is made up of:
●
●
●
●

£100,000 from Sutton & Merton CCG Charitable Trust;
£40,000 from Sutton Community Fund allocation for 2020/2021;
£27,000 from SES Water charitable donation to Community Action Sutton;
Funding donated through Sutton giving as a result of COVID-19.

6.44 The key aim of the fund is to assist voluntary and community sector groups and mutual aid /
other organisations providing services and support to individuals and families affected by the
COVID-19 Coronavirus pandemic. The grant is specifically for those organisations that are
delivering COVID-19 frontline services or whose ability to operate has been severely impacted
due to the pandemic.
Housing
6.45 Whilst there have been significant impacts on housing in general across the borough, the focus
has been to ensure that rough sleeper have been accommodated in suitable accommodation
and that households at risk of homelessness have been supported.
6.46 The Council has moved 13 rough sleepers off the streets, shelters and assessment centres, into
more appropriate accommodation where their health could be protected and the wider
transmission of the coronavirus could be stopped.

Page 20

Agenda Item 6

6.47 A further 61 people at imminent risk of rough sleeping have been supported into suitable
emergency accommodation. There has been a 91% increase in telephone calls from residents
worried about the security of their tenure, benefits, and financial concerns. Approaches from
households threatened with homelessness have increased by 7% compared with 2019/20 but
the total number placements into emergency accommodation has risen by 107%. The Council
has continued to work to:
●
●
●

Respond to the increased demand from households presenting as at imminent risk;
Assess and manage the risk of those households in emergency accommodation;
Provide support to vulnerable households in emergency and temporary
accommodation.

6.48 Encompass worked closely with SHP to increase the number of self-contained units of
temporary accommodation which facilitated self isolation for those households most at risk and
to source new sources of emergency accommodation. All families are now placed in
self-contained accommodation.
6.49 A new and fast track hospital discharge procedure was put in place to ensure the smooth
transition from hospitals of those households that were homeless on discharge. Further work is
underway to link former rough sleepers, and those at risk of returning to rough sleeping
currently in emergency accommodation, into health services.
6.50 Encompass have made 200+ phone calls, issued more than 60 Food Bank vouchers, and
assisted in the delivery of at least 20 food parcels, starter packs (bedding and crockery), beds,
microwaves and miscellaneous items to our most vulnerable households in emergency
accommodation.
6.51 In the longer term it will be necessary to identify step-down arrangements for all households
accommodated, including the provision of appropriate support to prevent people returning to the
streets.
Sutton Housing Partnership
6.52 SHP has been maintaining vital services to residents and keeping communities safe: this
includes cleaning, and maintenance. Ongoing essential services have also continued including
responding to anti-social behaviour, domestic abuse, and safeguarding which are even more
critical during lockdown. Interventions have been prompt and effective.
6.53 SHP has worked to ensure the prompt reletting of our homes to support hospital discharges and
to house the homeless. Contact has been maintained with all vulnerable residents, particularly
to those who are likely to struggle to cope with confinement and the restrictions it brings.
6.54 To prevent tenants from falling into debt, SHP has been encouraging them to keep paying their
rent, ideally by direct debit. SHP has committed not to evict anyone who is in difficulty because
of the impact of COVID-19. In addition, SHP has been working together with partners to
connect people to available support and develop resilience and support a range of concerns

Page 21

Agenda Item 6

such as eating and exercising, good mental health and not becoming socially isolated, money
and paying the bills. Work is being done to consider how to support these people moving
forward.
6.55 The Sutton Domestic Abuse Strategic Board met on 14th May with Health, Education, and
voluntary sector partners in attendance to review the data emerging about domestic abuse
during lockdown and to coordinate the Borough response to this. It is anticipated that demand
for specialist support for victims will increase as lockdown begins to ease and a range of
practical measures were identified to address this. The Metropolitan Police are being included in
the work.
Business Support
6.56 The vast majority of businesses in the borough have suffered severe hardship due to
COVID-19. Whether it is because they have been forced to close their premises or had a
reduction in sales, patronage or business due to the lockdown.
6.57 A Business Recovery Workstream has been established to understand the impact on
businesses in Sutton. A cross-Council Business Recovery working group and Recovery plan is
being developed to put in place measures to support the Borough's businesses. We will work
with them to reopen and re-establish activity safely in the short and medium term.
6.58 A clear understanding of specific businesses needs is being developed and we are working
closely with our business improvement districts, business networks and pan-london partners to
ensure we understand how businesses have been impacted and to design schemes to support
them over the coming months, building on what is already in place.
6.59 Much work is already underway. Regulatory Services have been working with businesses to
ensure compliance with the Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (England) Regulations
2020, providing advice and guidance to enable businesses to transition to takeaway, on-line or
click and collect services. They have been active in alerting businesses to business scams.
6.60 The Council is also working to support business, specifically by administering the business rate
relief scheme. The team has identified 941 businesses who qualify for the Retail, Leisure and
Hospitality 100% relief for 2020/21. These businesses have received the relief meaning they
have no business rate liability for the 2020/21 financial year. The total amount of relief awarded
to date is £26.135m. Bills reflecting the zero charge were sent to all the businesses on 12th
May.
6.61 £10,000 and £25,000 grants are available for a number of businesses. To date 1,483 smaller
businesses have received a £10k grant and 338 larger businesses have received a £25k grant.
The total amount of grants awarded is £23.28m and the team are still working on identifying
other businesses who may qualify for a grant. The total amount of funding made available by
the government was £28.16m.

Agenda Item 6

Page 22

6.62 A new discretionary business grant fund was announced in early May, to be administered by
local authorities. Sutton is also preparing to administer this fund to as many small businesses as
possible. The process for doing so is set out in Appendix B.
Communications
6.63 The intention has been to ensure that all communication has been managed proactively to
ensure consistent, accurate and timely messaging throughout the crisis. Communications have
focused on sharing what services continue to be available and which are not. Content across
channels has been developed to explain, interpret and apply national guidance for our local
population. This is supplemented, as appropriate, by national and pan-London campaign
materials developed by PHE England and London Councils.
6.64 A dedicated COVID-19 webpage has been created and regularly updated. The pages have had
an average of 3,795 daily visits with a peak of over 10,000 visits in late March. Web page
content and structure is kept under review and updates are made on an almost daily basis to
ensure the web pages continue to reflect the latest developments in the evolving local and
national picture.
6.65 The Council has created and administered the Sutton Coronavirus Support group on Facebook.
The Facebook support group has 3,450 members and has seen high levels of engagement. The
page is monitored seven days a week to ensure the accuracy and appropriateness of posts to
the page.
6.66 The Council’s social media channels have been key to disseminating local and national
messaging. Key service updates have been posted regularly, and all signpost the COVID-19
webpages for detailed information.
6.67 The fortnightly Sutton Scene, our resident e-newsletter, has been changed to a weekly
publication schedule. Since the COVID-19 outbreak started, subscriptions to Sutton Scene have
increased by 230 subscribers.
6.68 The team has also worked with the Sutton CCG and voluntary sector to share and amplify the
reach of important campaign messages and information targeted at the local population. This
has included promotion of the ‘Your NHS is still here for you’ campaign.
6.69 Internally, the workstream has delivered daily staff and partner updates to LBS, Cognus, SHP,
Encompass and Sutton College staff. Initial informal feedback shows that these have been well
received by staff. These updates are being supplemented by weekly updates to managers, to
highlight and signpost to workforce and IT guidance - which is also available on the intranet for
all staff.
6.70 Members of the Corporate Management team and the Leader have all participated in web-casts
with staff to ensure that they are informed, engaged and that their experiences are informing
planning as we move into the recovery phase.

Page 23

Agenda Item 6

Workforce
6.71 The Council’s workforce has responded magnificently during the covid-19 crisis. Staff have
gone above and beyond to ensure that the Council can still deliver key services to our residents
and that those most vulnerable people have continued to receive the support they need.
6.72 HR capacity has been refocused to critical activity to and implementing new processes as
required (deployment service, support with monitoring testing, moving to virtual recruitment for
critical posts). Key activities have been:
●
●
●
●

●

Deployed more people to critical roles than any other borough, with 228 staff deployed
both internally and into our partners;
Seconding 32 heath visitors and nurses to NHS, and furloughing 57 tutors from Sutton
College;
Producing and continuously updating interim workforce guidance for staff and
managers;
Producing and promoting resources and guidance for supporting mental health and
wellbeing for staff; re-focussing the learning and development offer and moving it
online
Communicating with staff and managers (regular managers’ updates, new intranet
pages, Insight articles, four live managers’ surgeries attended by over 160 people);
keeping Trade Unions informed.

6.73

The workforce workstream is now changing its focus to remain agile enough to respond to
issues / guidance as they continue to emerge whilst simultaneously working on plans to
ensure there is a coordinated approach to the phased return to office working, and the recall of
deployed, seconded and furloughed staff.

6.74

Overnight, the introduction of the lockdown resulted in officers moving from working in Council
offices to working from home. On a normal day approximately 25% of people connected
remotely, it is now normal to see over 90%. The Council’s IT has operated well given that
there was very little time to plan or deliver the responses; and the use of Google and video
conferencing has enabled the work of the Council to continue.

6.75

The Council has supported colleagues as they move to working from home, rolling out
equipment as required. The lockdown also required moving our call centre to working from
home, with new phones systems quickly put into place. It has also adapted to support the
running of remote Council and Committee meetings.

6.76

Sickness absence has fallen considerably since the move to working remotely for the majority
of the workforce. The Council will continue to promote and support ways of working that will
maintain reduced sickness absence and increased productivity / effectiveness going forward.

6.77

Looking ahead, the focus will be on these immediate key areas:
●

Providing a set of principles that will set out how we will support staff and managers

Page 24

Agenda Item 6

●
●
●

both in making these decisions and also as they either return to the office or continue
to work at home. These will provide an overarching framework for these decisions, but
also leave sufficient flexibility for managers to respond to the differing needs and
circumstances of individual members of staff, and services;
Provide advice and guidance on recall from deployment, secondment and furlough as
well as return to office working;
Providing longer term support and guidance for home working (risk assessments,
improved access to equipment eg chairs);
Develop approach for long term mental health support / post traumatic support as well
as ongoing support (financial / physical / workplace / emotional) for all staff,
recognising that staff will have been differently affected;

7.

Personal Protective Equipment (PPE)

7.1

PPE is not a workstream in itself, but the ability to source and utilise PPE has been key to
enabling the delivery of services (often to the most vulnerable). Throughout the crisis the
demand for PPE has been unprecedented and the Council has had to source PPE from a
number of different sources in order to ensure that staff, partners and suppliers have access to
the supplies they need. The Council has been able make use of existing supply arrangements
as well as emergency supplies provided by the NHS and Government.

7.2

More recently a London wide contract for the supply of PPE has been developed, of which
Sutton is the sub-regional lead for our region. Orders for over £4m of PPE have been placed,
including over £1m for Sutton.

7.3

The Council has worked closely with Care providers to ensure that they have access to the
supplies of PPE they need. The Council will continue to source PPE in support of the care
market where this is necessary.

7.4

The Council has set up a PPE store in the Sutton College building where orders are received,
checked, stored and passed onto our regional partner boroughs, as well as Sutton services,
partners, and suppliers which require PPE to keep their workforce safe whilst they continue to
provide vital services for our residents.

8.

NHS Test and Trace

8.1

The Council will play its role in the new government Test and Trace system. The system,
designed to identify people who have come into close contact with people who test positive for
COVID-19 went live on 28th May 2020 in England, with the aim of supporting the move from
national lockdown, to more targeted measures.

8.2

NHS Track and Trace will contact residents who have received a positive test result for
coronavirus and work with them to identify any recent close contacts who may have potentially
been exposed. These contacts will then be contacted and advised to self-isolate for fourteen
days and to get a test themselves if they develop symptoms. In this manner the service aims to
quickly break chains of transmission of the virus within the local community and to prevent

Page 25

Agenda Item 6

further cases. The success of this approach will be vital to maintain the current easing of
lockdown restrictions in Sutton.
8.3

The key roles for the council and local partners will include:
●

●
●
●

The provision of support to individuals who may find it difficult to self-isolate. This will
be provided through the existing Community Hub in terms of support around issues
such as mental wellbeing, finances or food.
A clear communication strategy so that businesses and communities understand the
importance of NHS Track and Trace and its potential impact on them.
Work to identify high-risk settings and assist with control measures to prevent future
outbreaks; e.g. in care homes, schools and hostels.
To lead local incident management teams, with Public Health England and other
partners, to control any future local outbreaks of the virus.

9.

Transition to Recovery

9.1

The Council’s transition plans will focus on how we continue to support our communities,
business and our own workforce as we move into the next phase of our response.

9.2

As the Council moves from the initial crisis response to recovery, there is a requirement to plan
the transition from the current ways of working and delivery of services, through to what this will
look like in the ‘new normal’. The timetable for recovery will be based on a number of different
factors including the speed at which current social distancing restrictions are lifted over the
coming months, but also our own priorities for reinstating services.

9.3

The Council will continue to work with our partners to ensure that our respective recovery plans
are aligned and dependencies are identified. To date the Councils has been working to a
number of key principles for recovery:
●
●

●
●
●
●
●

Ensure that individuals, communities and businesses can access the support they need
to mitigate the ongoing impact of COVID-19 over the coming months;
Engagement with and support of our staff will be key in building new ways of working
and the support of managers and staff will enable us to get there. In addition, ongoing
communication with our providers, partners and residents on preparing for future
resilience will also be vitally important;
Build on the innovation shown in how we have responded quickly to deliver essential
services in a different way, and we want to keep this and build on it going forward;
Maintain strong relationships with our voluntary sector and new social care pathways,
and we want to maintain these relationships going forwards;
To take the opportunity to harness the opportunities that a digital approach to services
represents;
Align with national, London and regional planning where appropriate;
Services and the Council as a whole will need to be resilient to future further outbreaks,
learning from and building upon experience to date.

Agenda Item 6

10.

Page 26

Impacts and Implications
Financial

10.1 The implications of COVID-19 and the Council’s response will have a significant financial
impact. The government has announced funding in a number of areas. Emergency funding of
£1.6 bn was announced on 20th March. Sutton has been allocated £4.9m and this was received
on 27th March. This is not ring-fenced but is intended to cover additional costs to the Council
and demand on services, including social care. Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) have
been funded separately for the additional costs of discharging and keeping people out of
Hospital. The Council is already working closely with the CCG to ensure these costs are tracked
and funded appropriately.
10.2 A second emergency funding round of a further £1.6b was announced in April. Sutton received
an allocation of £5.6m, bringing the total announced for Sutton to date to £10.5m. The Council is
maintaining a forecast of spend that will be incurred against this grant as well as the level of
income to the Council lost as a result of some services being closed (e.g. Leisure Centres) and
others experiencing a fall in demand for fee paying activities (e.g. Car Parks). It is also
anticipated that some savings originally planned to be delivered in 2020/21 will now be delayed
as a result of the need to deploy staff to the COVID-19 response and the increased level of
support needed from some Council services.
10.3 These forecasts are very indicative given the significant uncertainty about when, and how,
lockdown will be lifted and the ongoing impact on Council services over the medium term. It is
likely the economic damage and associated impact on residents will require significant Council
response going forwards even after the virus has been contained.
10.4 The total estimated financial impact to the Council is currently £19.385m, a pressure of £8.028m
over and above Council and CCG funding, see appendix A. The impact of business rates and
council tax income is estimated to be £5.364m and is part of the overall total shown above.
Accounting for these areas forms part of the Collection fund and the impact of losses in 2020/21
would fall in the following year 2021/22. There is continued discussion with the Ministry of
Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) to ensure they are aware of the
pressures and costs falling to Councils. There is expectation that further funding will follow if
required but clearly there is a risk to our Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP). A further report
will be provided to this Committee in September.
10.5 There has been other support from the government that has been ringfenced for specific
purposes. The costs associated with the business rates holiday for 2020/21, the discretionary
business grants scheme and the Hardship fund are funded fully by the government. Sutton has
been allocated grants to fund each of these of £28.2m, £1.4m and £1.6m respectively.
Additionally funding has been announced for Infection control in Care homes, Test, Track and
Trace and Reopening High Street Safely.
Legal

Page 27

Agenda Item 6

10.6 The Coronavirus Act 2020 enables the Council to respond to the emergency situation and
manage the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic. The Act contains temporary measures
designed to amend existing legislative provisions and introduce new statutory powers which
mitigate the impact of the virus.
10.7 The measures set out in the report are in accordance with the emergency arrangements and the
requirements of the guidance, regulations and directions issued by the Government under the
Coronavirus Act 2020 and the consequential regulations and directions issued thereunder.
11.

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix letter

Title

A

COVID-19 Expenditure

B

Discretionary Grants Fund

Background documents
None

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 29 May 2020

Finance

Yes

Richard Simpson

Legal

Yes

Stephen Gerrard

No

N/A

Consultation with other officers

Equality Impact
required?

Assessment

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 29

Agenda Item 6

APPENDIX A
DASHBOARD - FINANCIAL IMPACT OF COVID-19

SUMMARY

£'000

FORECAST SPEND
Additional Cost / Lost Income (incl HRA) - 2020/21
Lost Taxation income - 2021/22
TOTAL FORECAST SPEND

14,021
5,364
19,385

FORECAST INCOME
COVID-19 GRANT (£1.6bn allocation)

4,911

COVID-19 GRANT 2

5,606

NHS contribution to additional ASC spend (via BCF)
TOTAL FORECAST INCOME

840
11,357

FORECAST NET IMPACT - 2020/21

2,664

FORECAST NET IMPACT - 2021/22

5,364

FORECAST ADDITIONAL COSTS & LOST INCOME

Category
TOTAL EXCEPTIONAL COSTS

Total One-off
Impact

Total per
month
Impact

Total for
period

£'000

£'000

£'000

835)

336)

2,791)

1,301)

344)

3,359)

0)

894)

5,364)

TOTAL LOSS OF INCOME

1,042)

668)

3,992

TOTAL IMPACT ON SAVINGS / CAPITAL
PROGRAMMES

3,879)

0)

3,879)

TOTAL FINANCIAL IMPACT

7,056)

2,242)

19,385)

TOTAL INCREASED SERVICE DEMAND
TOTAL IMPACT ON LOCAL TAXATION

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 31

Agenda Item 6

London Borough of Sutton - Discretionary COVID Business Grant Fund
- Guidance - Version 1
● In May 2020, a new Discretionary Grants Fund was announced to support certain
small and micro businesses that fell outside the scope of the current COVID grant
funds schemes. In Sutton, the total fund available is approximately £1.27m.
● This guidance is aimed at businesses that wish to apply for Sutton’s Discretionary
Grant Fund. In order to apply, businesses must meet the criteria outlined below,
and submit an application form and evidence.
Summary
● The fund will open for applications on *** and close on *** (2 week period). Once the
fund has closed, all applications will be assessed.
● The government has allocated a limited, fixed amount of funding to Sutton Council.
If there is significant demand, not all eligible businesses applying will receive
funding.
● If the number of eligible businesses applying exceeds the funding available, then
awards will be allocated to businesses in the greatest financial hardship. All grant
awards are to be made at the discretion of the local authority.
● If funding remains after the first round, the London Borough of Sutton may choose
to reopen the fund, potentially with varied eligibility criteria or priorities.
● The Council reserves the right to vary the terms of the scheme at any time, and
without notice, should it be necessary to do so.
● If your application was successful, we will ask you to complete a State Aid
declaration prior to the grant payment being made.
● If you have any queries please contact discretionarygrant@sutton.gov.uk

DRAFT VERSION

Page 32

Agenda Item 6

Eligibility
● These grants are primarily and predominantly aimed at businesses which meet all
of the criteria outlined below:
● Small and micro businesses, as defined in Section 33 Part 2 of the Small
Business, Enterprise and Employment Act 2015 and the Companies Act
2006.
○ To be a small business, under the Companies Act 2006, a business
must satisfy two or more of the following requirements in a year—
■ Turnover: Not more than £10.2 million
■ Balance sheet total: Not more than 5.1 million
■ Number of employees: a headcount of staff of less than 50
○ To be a micro business, under the Companies Act 2006, a business
must satisfy two or more of the following requirements—
■ Turnover: Not more than £632,000
■ Balance sheet total: Not more than £316,000
■ Number of employees: a headcount of staff of not more than 10
● Businesses with relatively high ongoing fixed property-related costs linked to
a commercial property. Building-related costs include: rent, mortgage
payments, membership fees for shared work-space, building insurance and
utility costs (awaiting FAQs from BEIS which may set out details)
● Businesses which can demonstrate that they have suffered a significant fall
in income due to the COVID-19 crisis.
● Businesses which occupy property, or part of a property, with a rateable
value or annual rent or annual mortgage payments below £51,000.
● Businesses can only receive one grant under the Discretionary Fund
Business Grant.
To be eligible you:

DRAFT
2

Page 33

Agenda Item 6

● Must not be in receipt of grant funding from other central government COVID
related schemes including the Small Business Grant Fund; and the Retail,
Hospitality and Leisure Grant.
● Must have been trading on 11 March 2020.
● Must not be in administration, insolvent or have had a striking-off notice made both
at the point of application, and when the grant is due to be paid.
● Must have a registered or trading address in the London Borough of Sutton.
● Note: Businesses who have applied for the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme and
the Self-Employment Income Support Scheme are eligible to apply for this scheme.
Types of business that may apply
● Examples of the types of businesses that this funding scheme aims to assist in
Sutton are;
○ Small businesses in shared offices or other flexible workspaces. Examples
could include units in industrial parks, science parks and incubators which do
not have their own business rates assessment;
○ Commercial properties that are not rated for NNDR purposes, and are
exempted from NNDR (ie cafes in parks, small holdings, plant nurseries)
○ Bed & Breakfasts which pay Council Tax instead of business rates and
appropriately registered, are wholly or mainly used as guest or boarding
premises;
○ Charity properties in receipt of charitable business rates relief which would
otherwise have been eligible for Small Business Rates Relief or Rural Rate
Relief
● The list set out above is not intended to be exhaustive but is intended to guide
applicants as to the types of business that could apply for the scheme. All grants
are provided at the discretion of the London Borough of Sutton, and eligible
businesses that fall into the categories above are not guaranteed funding through
this scheme.
Grants available

DRAFT
3

Agenda Item 6

Page 34

● The London Borough of Sutton wants the maximum number of businesses to
benefit under this grant scheme. Therefore, the typical award made through the
fund will be £5,000.
● An award of £10,000 or £25,000 may be made in exceptional circumstances. An
alternative award of under £10,000 may also be made in exceptional
circumstances.
Application Form
● All businesses that wish to apply for the grant must complete an application form.
Before you begin, you will need the following information to hand to complete the
application:
● Bank statements for the period 1 January 2020 to 31st May 2020 for the
account into which you would like any grant to be paid.
● Specific details and evidence of the fixed ongoing building-related costs (ie
copy of signed lease, contract, licence, membership of co-working or
mortgage agreement, building insurance documentation).
● Xero / Sage / Quickbooks or equivalent Profit and Loss summary from April
2019 to March 2020
● Xero / Sage / Quickbooks or equivalent Balance Sheet
● Your last years audited accounts (if applicable)
● Company details
● Registered address
● Trading addresses
● Number of employees
● Company registration number
● Business rates account number (if applicable)
● Turnover for last year of audited account
● Balance sheet total for last year of audited accounts
● Business bank account details which the grant would be paid into if
successful
● Please be aware that we may contact you for further information or evidence if
needed to process your application.
● We will use details you have provided in your application to carry out further checks.
State Aid / Payment Checks
DRAFT
4

Page 35

Agenda Item 6

● This grant funding is subject to State Aid. On application/if successful you will be
asked to confirm that this funding will not exceed the maximum permitted funding
under the relevant State Aid rules – EUR 200,000 over three years under the De
Minimis Regulation, or EUR 800,000 under the COVID-19 Temporary Framework
scheme for the UK (different thresholds apply to agriculture, fisheries and
aquaculture business).
● The government will not accept deliberate manipulation and fraud - and any
business caught falsifying their records to gain grant money will face prosecution
and any funding issued will be subject to claw back, as may any grants paid in
error.
● Post payment checks using the government Grants Management Function and
Counter Fraud Function will support local authorities to carry out post-event
assurance work to identify high risk payments.
● Grant income received by a business is taxable therefore funding paid under the
Local Authority Discretionary Grants Fund will be subject to tax. Only businesses
which make an overall profit once grant income is included will be subject to tax.

DRAFT
5

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 37

Agenda Item 7

Report to:

Strategy and Resources Committee

Report title:

Financial Performance 2019/20

Report from:

Richard Simpson, Strategic Director - Resources

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough Wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:

Councillor Ruth Dombey, Leader of the Council
Councillor Sunita Gordon, Lead Member for Finance

Author(s)/Contact Number(s):

Victoria Goddard, Assistant Director - Resources (Shared
Finance Service), 020 8770 4652
Kevin Kilburn, Head of Financial Reporting & Control, 020
8770 6713

Corporate Plan Priorities:

Open/Exempt:

●
●
●
●
●

Date:

8 June 2020

Being Active
Making Informed Choices
Living Well Independently
Keeping People Safe
Smarter Ways of Working

Open

Signed:

26 May 2020

Richard Simpson
Strategic Director of Resources

F

1.

Summary

1.1.

The Council adopted its corporate plan ‘Ambitious for Sutton’ in September 2018 and
2019/20 was the first full year covered by the Plan and its objectives as we seek to deliver
our ambitions for Sutton to be ‘a great place to live, work and raise a family’. Although the
Covid-19 pandemic only impacted directly on the last month of the financial year, this report
is presented in the context of the new service and financial uncertainty created by this
pandemic.

1.2.

The report covers the financial performance of the council and includes an overview of the
Council’s 2019/20 revenue and capital financial outturn. In February 2019, the Council set a
budget for the following financial year with a Net Budget Requirement of £144.178m. The
revenue outturn for the year is a net underspend against this budget of £0.510m (0.4%).

Agenda Item 7

Page 38

This is a good outcome and will put us in a stronger position to manage the uncertain
challenges ahead.
1.3.

This report provides a brief narrative on the service budget variances that make up the
outturn position. The reasons for key variations for revenue are set out in paragraphs 4.1 to
4.19 and Appendix A.

1.4.

The spend on the capital programme is £85.685m compared to a current capital
programme budget of £89.295m. This is explained in paragraphs 7.1 to 7.4 and in
Appendix C.

2.

Recommendations

2.1.

To note the overall total General Fund revenue financial outturn underspending of £0.510m,
or 0.4% of the Net Budget Requirement.

2.2.

To approve the transfer of £428,128 to the Risk Reserve, with the balance from the
underspending accruing to the General Fund Balance. This will ensure the General Fund
Balance remains at 5% of the Council’s Net Budget Requirement for 2020/21.

2.3.

To note the key 2019/20 revenue budget variations as presented in Appendix A.

2.4.

To agree to carry forwards totalling £0.867m of unspent revenue budgets to be held in
earmarked reserves. T
 hese are summarised in paragraph 5.4 and detailed in Appendix B.

2.5.

To note the earmarked reserve year end adjustments in 2019/20 as summarised in
paragraphs 5.1 to 5.7.

2.6.

To agree the proposed net increase of £4.324m to the Capital Programme 2020/21
summarised in Appendix C which is mainly due to expenditure being rephased from
2019/20.

3.

Background

3.1.

The Corporate Plan (Ambitious for Sutton) sets out the priorities for the Council over the
period 2018 - 2023. These priorities are being delivered under the following themes: Being
Active, Making Informed Choices, Living Well Independently, Keeping People Safe, and
Smarter Ways of Working in accordance with the direction of travel and future shape of the
Council.

3.2.

The 2019/20 budget was set around the Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan which set
out the activities that contribute to the delivery of Corporate Plan priorities.

3.3.

The Council continues to manage significant budget and delivery risks arising from
demographic growth and government policy developments.

Page 39

3.4.

4.

Agenda Item 7

The Covid-19 pandemic presents the Council with significant service and financial
challenges, both now and into the future. At present there continues to be significant
uncertainty on the impact and scale of the pandemic upon the Council’s financial position
and will depend on when, and how, lockdown is lifted; the ongoing impact on Council
services and how the national economic damage affect public finances and local
government funding over the medium term.

Revenue Budget Outturn

4.1.

The General Fund budget outturn position, subject to external audit, is a net contribution to
reserves and balances of £0.510m (0.4%) against an approved final budget of £144.178m.
The forecast outturn at the end of Quarter 3, reported to this Committee on 10 February
2020 was for an underspending of £0.267m. The outturn and variances are summarised in
the table below.

4.2.

The outturn position for services shown in Table 1 below includes budget virements agreed
by officers under delegated authority or by Committee in year. It also takes account of
carry forwards of unspent grants which must be used for specific purposes.

Agenda Item 7

Page 40

Table 1 - Revenue Budget Outturn Summary
Budget

Outturn

Variance

Variance

Q3 Forecast
Variance

£'000

£'000

£'000

%

£'000

Commissioning Directorates
People Services
- Adult Social Care and Children's
Services

86,715

87,148

434

0.50%

153

- DSG Centrally Retained

97,311

97,468

157

0.16%

1,398

(97,311)

(97,468)

(157)

(0.16%)

(1,398)

0

314

314

100.00%

0

31,865

31,977

112

0.35%

163

118,580

119,439

860

0.72%

316

21,323

20,742

(581)

(2.72%)

(214)

9,555

8,891

(664)

(6.95%)

(267)

0

664

664

100.00%

267

- Public Health Grant

(9,555)

(9,555)

0

0.00%

0

Resources

16,041

15,492

(549)

(3.42%)

(517)

(11,766)

(12,005)

(239)

(2.03%)

148

25,598

24,229

(1,369)

(5.35%)

(583)

144,178

143,668

(510)

(0.35%)

(267)

- Retained Business Rates (including
Collection Fund surplus)

(27,292)

(27,292)

0

0.00%

0

- Top up Grant

(15,731)

(15,731)

0

0.00%

0

(100,626)

(100,626)

0

0.00%

0

(529)

(529)

0

0.00%

0

(144,178)

(144,178)

0

0.00%

0

0

(510)

(510)

- Dedicated Schools Grant and
Reserve
Sutton College
Environment, Housing and
Regeneration
Sub-total

Corporate Core
Chief Executive's
- Public Health
- Transfer to Public Health Reserve

Corporate revenue budgets and core
grants
Sub-total

Current Expenditure Position
2018/19

Funding Sources

- Council Tax
- Collection Fund Council Tax surplus
Total Funding

TOTAL

(267)

Page 41

Agenda Item 7

People Services Directorate
4.3.

The General Fund revenue outturn position for People Services Directorate was an
overspend of £0.434m and is summarised below.
Table 2 - People Services Revenue Outturn
£000’s
Adult Social Care

£0

Better Care Fund

£0

Children’s Safeguarding

£180

Education

£254

Total

£434

4.4.

Support to vulnerable people over the age of 18 is covered by the Adult Social Care (ASC)
and Better Care Fund (BCF) budgets, the second of these funded on a pooled basis with
the NHS. Both of these have been delivered to budget, which includes a carry forward on
ASC in respect of third party funding for the Sutton Safeguarding Adults Board of £0.121m.

4.5.

The overspend of £0.179m for Children’s Safeguarding was largely driven by £0.362m of
additional high cost residential and secure placements, and £0.372m due to the greater use
of agency social workers. Off-setting this was grant funding for Leaving Care/
Unaccompanied Asylum Seeker Children (UASC) being £0.423m higher than budgeted,
and lower legal costs caused by a reduced volume of cases.

4.6.

Within the Education service, the SEND/ Assisted Travel budget achieved a saving of
£0.750m from a target of £1.042m. This variance relates to demand exceeding 2019/20
growth allocation and rephasing of routes being recommissioned from January to April
2020.

4.7.

Outside of the General Fund, the Dedicated Schools Grant overspent in total by £0.157m.
The main variations relate to £0.825 overspend on high needs, largely due to increasing
numbers of children with Education and Health Care Plans and associated therapy costs;
offset by £0.595m underspend on Early Years. This in-year overspend is met from the
£1.068m reserve carried forward from last year.
Sutton College

4.8.

Sutton College provides access to students aged 16 and above who wish to pursue
qualifications to support access to further education and vocational training. While still a
London Borough of Sutton service, the College receives funding from the Greater London
Authority and Education Skills Funding Agency.

4.9.

For 2019/20 the College had an in-year deficit of £0.314m of expenditure over income. This
was primarily due to the reduction in fee paying enrolments.

Agenda Item 7

Page 42

Environment, Housing and Regeneration (EH&R)
4.10.

The EH&R directorate covers a wide range of services. The directorate ended the year with
an overspending of £0.112m, which consisted of service overspends in Planning &
Development Control and Environment & Community Safety, off-set by underspends in
Housing & Regeneration and Highways & Transportation.

4.11.

Building Control suffered reduced in-year fee income due to declining business and
reduced market share. In addition, the labour market for surveyors continued to be tight and
the council was reliant on agency staff. Including an adjustment of the previous year, this
led to a deficit of £0.327m.

4.12.

The Environment and Community Safety service overspent by £0.380m, largely the result
of the annual review process with contractors and increased waste disposal costs for
contaminated waste to preserve recycling rates.

4.13.

Partially off-setting these overspends were underspent budgets for Housing & Regeneration
and Highways & Transportation. A fall in the volume of accommodation bookings led to a
reduction in bed & breakfast costs and coupled with a potential liability made in 2018/19 not
occurring, the Housing service had an underspending of £0.327m.

4.14.

The Highways & Transportation service underspent its budget by £0.313m. Additional
savings were achieved through the ability to undertake works during the day, rather than
more expensive night works. In addition, there were constraints on contractor resources
and access during the busy part of the year, leading to further reductions in spending.
Chief Executive’s

4.15.

The Chief Executive’s directorate underspent by £0.581m during the 2019/20 financial year.
A significant proportion of this was within the Wellbeing service due to lower concessionary
fare costs (£0.208m) and higher than expected income from Clinical Commissioning
Groups for Continuing Health Care (£0.133k). In addition, the Libraries restructure led to
staff vacancies being held and an underspend of £0.108m. Revised management fees
within the Leisure Service led to a further surplus of £0.095m.

4.16.

The Public Health grant for 2019/20 was £9.555m, of which £8.891m was spent. A large
proportion of the underspend is attributable to reduced activity leading to reduced tariff
costs with regards to the sexual health contract (£0.264m) and the health checks contract
with the GP federation (£0.140m). Staffing vacancies in the Healthy Child programme
accounted for an underspend of £0.14m despite recruitment of additional staff throughout
the year. A vacancy in the public health team contributed to an underspend of £120k; this
was mitigated by the recruitment of an additional interim public health post in March to
ensure adequate capacity through the COVID-19 crisis. Given the uncertainty over the level
of Public Health funding for 2020/21, the actual amount was not confirmed until the budget
was set, it made sense to not commit any underspend until the amount of funding available
for 2020/21 was clear. This is now factored into the budget for 2020/21.

Page 43

Agenda Item 7

Resources
4.17.

The Resources outturn was an underspend of £0.550m, which is the net of over and
underspends within the service.

4.18.

The largest areas are:
●

ICT Service - unachievable savings on ICT Support and services, retained
Services and E-volve Digital Programme totalling £0.702m overspending.

Off-set by the following underspendings;
●

●
●

Property Services (£0.538m) largely due to increased income from rent
reviews and additional savings in facilities management from premises costs,
postage and general repairs.
Business Services (£0.427m) from an underspend on insurance and staffing
reductions in support services
Finance Service (£0.252m) due to the early delivery of 2020/19 savings;
increased charges to group companies and the pension fund for additional
staff time; delays to the ‘go-live’ of the counter fraud hub and reduced external
audit fees.

Corporate Revenue Budget
4.19.

The Corporate budgets, covering capital financing, government grants and other
non-service costs underspent by £0.239m. This was largely due to;
●

off set by
●
5.
5.1.

reduced pensions deficit payment from other scheme employers of £190k

Reserves
The £0.510m underspend is proposed to be distributed as follows
●
●

5.2.

additional government grants of £0.642m, mostly for Section 31 Grants for
business rates allowances and reliefs in relation to the London Business
Rates Pool

£0.081m to the General Fund Reserve to maintain the balance at 5% of the
Council’s net budget requirement
£0.428m to the Risk Reserve to mitigate against the uncertain challenges
faced in future years

There has been renewed scrutiny of the level of reserves across local authorities as it is
one of the measures that can be used to judge the financial standing and sustainability of
an organisation. The level of reserves at 31 March 2020 was £7.408m, which is a decrease
from £8.416m at 31 March 2019 due to the planned use of reserves in setting the 2019/20

Agenda Item 7

Page 44

budget. However, the General Fund reserves remain at an appropriate level and in line with
policy and best practice at 5% of net budget requirement.
5.3.

Earmarked reserves are for specific purposes so can be quite difficult to compare from
authority to authority and from year to year. At 31 March 2020 earmarked reserves stood at
£28.227m. This is an increase from the same point last year of just under £7m. The carry
forward of the Covid19 Emergency grant which was received at the end of March 2020
accounts for £4.8m of this increase.

5.4.

Included within the total of earmarked reserves is the carry forward of non-grant budget
from 2019/20. These total £0.867m and are detailed in Appendix B. It is recommended
these carry forwards are to be held in the Non Grant Carry Forward Earmarked Reserve
until needed in future years.

5.5.

Specific government grants not fully spent in year are carried forward to the following year
to fund appropriate expenditure where the grants conditions allow and these are shown in
the Revenue Grants Unapplied Reserve. To aid transparency in 2020/21, two of these
grants have been separated out to form individual reserves. These are the Covid 19
Emergency Grant and the Public Health Grant.

5.6.

The Council received £4.911m as its share of the national £1.6bn Covid 19 Emergency
reserve, which was the first tranche of government support to local authorities to support
the pandemic response and recovery. The Council only incurred a small amount of
expenditure in relation to the pandemic during the last few weeks of the financial year,
totalling £70,000. Therefore the remaining £4.841m is carried forward in the reserve to be
applied in year. This will be used alongside the allocation provided in May 2020 of £5.606m.
These funds will be fully utilised and based on current projections the overall additional
spend and lost income related to COVID 19 is expected to be a gross cost of approx £19m.

5.7.

As described above, the Public Health grant was underspent by £0.664m. This grant is
strictly ring fenced for specific public health activities and where there is an underspending
it must be carried forward to be applied in the following years

6.

Housing Revenue Account

6.1.

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) outturn is an in year surplus of £4.004m which is
£1.216m higher than the budgeted surplus. When added to existing reserve balances the
forecast year end HRA reserve balance will be £7.076m.

6.2.

The increase in surplus is largely due to the additional week of rental income at the end of
the year which was not included in the budget along with the number of properties acquired
during the year being higher than modelled in the HRA business plan.

6.3.

There has also been additional service charge income from both tenants and leaseholders.

6.4.

Table 3 below shows a summary of the accounts. The additional surplus for the year, has
resulted in a closing balance of £7m is significantly higher than the minimum required 5% of

Page 45

Agenda Item 7

controllable expenditure. This will allow scope for improvements to day to day services to
residents and/or further capital investment through revenue contributions during 2020/21.

Table 3 - Housing Revenue Account 2019/20
Budget

Outturn

Variance

£'000

£'000

£'000

Income
Rental income

(33,712)

(34,438)

(726)

Other income

(2,794)

(2,983)

(189)

(36,505)

(37,420)

(915)

16,429

16,055

(374)

7,519

7,204

(315)

23,948

23,259

(689)

(12,557)

(14,161)

(1,604)

9,769

10,157

388

Surplus for the year

(2,788)

(4,004)

(1,216)

Opening working balance 1 April 2019

(3,063)

(3,063)

0

Closing working balance 31 March 2020

(5,852)

(7,067)

(1,216)

Expenditure
Operating costs
Non-operating costs

Net cost of services

Appropriations to capital and capital financing

7.

2019/20 Capital Summary

7.1.

The 2019/20 capital outturn is £85.685m compared to a current capital programme budget
of £89.295m. This is a net projected underspend of £3.610m or 4.04%. A sum of £4.324m
is the impact of slippage where spend is now expected in 2020/21. The balance of £0.714m
reflects an increase in 2019/20 for invest to save schemes, use of S106 income, additional
grants, and other minor funding adjustments. Further details are shown in Appendix C.

7.2.

The table and graph below summarises the position for each Directorate as at 31 March
2020. Actual expenditure (outturn) includes provision for works completed but not yet
invoiced by the contractor.

Page 46

Agenda Item 7

Table 4 - 2019/20 Capital Budget Outturn
2019/20 Capital Programme

Chief Executive's

Budget

Outturn

Budget
Spend

£'000

£'000

%

Variance
£'000

560

308

55.00%

(252)

20,867

18,757

89.89%

(2,110)

8,896

8,710

97.91%

(186)

Total E, H & R

29,763

27,467

92.29%

(2,296)

People Services - Schools

20,270

19,774

97.55%

(496)

People Services - Other

34

19

55.88%

(15)

Total People Services

20,304

19,793

97.48%

(511)

Resources

38,668

38,117

98.58%

(551)

Total

89,295

85,685

95.96%

(3,610)

E, H & R - Housing
E, H & R - Other

7.3.

During the year the Council implemented a number of key capital projects. These included
major improvements to the Council’s housing stock to meet the Decent Homes Standards,
completion of the new build council housing on the sites of Richmond Green, Ludlow Lodge
and Fellows Road and the start of the delivery of new build phase 2 and 3, start to deliver of
the Estate Regeneration programme for Beechtree Close, completion of the new Belmont
secondary school, investing in IT and accommodation changes, major acquisitions of new
commercial properties in Hannibal Way and Sutton High Street, as well as rolling
programmes to improve highways, pavements and street lighting.

7.4.

The reasons for the main capital variations are as follows:
Environment, Housing and Regeneration Directorate - Underspend £2.296m

.

●

Re-phasing of £1.756m on various housing council stock projects due to contract
issues.

●

Re-phasing of £0.485m on phase 2 new build housing scheme due to delay arising
from the complexities of the sites and planning and various tendering issues.

Page 47

Agenda Item 7

●

An overspend of £0.467m on property acquisitions for temporary accommodation due
to more acquisitions than originally budgeted for.

●

Pavement, Highway resurfacing and Street Lighting project rephasing of £0.229m due
to COVID issues.

People Directorate - Underspend £0.510m
●

Re-phasing of £0.342m on Secondary expansions due to advance payments to
secondary schools for bulge classes anticipated to be made before year end were
actually paid in April 2020 after agreements had been formalised with the schools.

●

Rephasing of £0.112m for Capital Maintenance Grant for three school projects that
were delayed.

Resources - Underspend £0.551m
●

Overspend on Commercial Properties of £0.248m due to additional retention release
and fees unbudgeted.

●

Rephasing of Adult Social Services ICT project £153k due to review of development
plan in progress.

●

Rephasing of the Digital Programme of £0.399m due to a combination of the delay in
starting of the Customer Platform and the projects identified in 19/20 did not require
all the funding available to the programme.

●

Rephasing of £0.091m for Expenditure for Corporate Operational Buildings due to
delays in works at Civic

●

Rephasing of £0.104m on energy efficiency projects to be rolled out in 2020/21
following successful pilot.

Chief Executive’s - Underspend £0.252m
●

8.

Rephasing of Heritage capital budgets of £0.059m for Whitehall HLF scheme which is
complete but sum is needed to fund shortfall in HLF funding and Little Holland House
of £0.063m for which a project plan is in place to complete works to improve access
to the house with a view to securing external funding opportunities for new services.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

8.1.

The financial implications are covered in the relevant sections of the report.

Page 48

Agenda Item 7

Legal
8.2.
9.

There are no specific legal implications arising from the report.
Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix letter

Title

A

Revenue Budget Variations 2019/20

B

Non Grant Carry Forwards 2019/20

C

Recommended capital budget adjustments 2019/20

Background documents
None
Audit Trail
Version

Final

26 May 2020

Consultation with other officers
Finance

Yes

Richard Simpson

Legal

No

N/A

Equality Impact Assessment
Required?

No

N/A

Page 49
2019/20 Explanation of Revenue Budget Variations
Directorate and Service

People Services
Children's Social Care

Education

Explanation of variation

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A
Amount of
variation
£'000

Use of agency social workers

(372)

Additional high cost residential and secure placements;
Additional grant income for under 18 Unaccompanied Asylum Seeker Children
Lower legal costs due to lower volume
Other variations
Total Children's Social Care
SEND/Assisted Travel. Against a savings target of £1.042m, savings of £748k were achieved. Main
reasons for overspend relate to demand exceeding 2019/20 growth allocation and rephasing of Sherwood
Park routes being recommissioned through the DPS from January to April 2020.
Other variations
Total Education

(362)
(423)
(101)
(31)
(179)
(294)

In year-deficit primarily due to the reduction in fee paying enrolments. Sutton College is not unique in this
as participation rates in adult learning has declined nationally by nearly 4 million since 2010. The projected
income was also over inflated and not based on trend data or the curriculum plan.

(314)

Total People Services

(40)
(254)
(434)

Sutton College

Total Sutton College
Environment, Housing and Regeneration
Planning and Building Control

(314)

Building Control deficits from previous years charged to revenue in 2019/20 (£83k overspend). In-year fee
income reduced (£142k) due to declining business and reduced market share
Agency staff required for statutory compliance - unable to recruit permanently due to surveyor shortage
Other variances
Total Planning and Building Control
Annual review process with contractors leading to increased prices
Increased waste disposal costs to preserve recycling rate (additional treatment of contaminated waste)
Safer Sutton Partnership - underspend due to reduced MetPatrol, and expected liabilities not fully
materialising
Total Environment & Community Safety
£164k temporary accommodation underspend - reduced B&B costs due to fewer accommodation bookings
£107k underspend on Housing and Support budgets - creditor accrual not materialised and budgets
unused
Other variances
Total Housing & Regeneration
Additional underspend due to a lower level of spend on footway and other reactive maintenance works.
There were constraints in ability to mobilise extra contractor resources during busy time of the financial
year, coupled with network access restraints. There were also some unexpected savings through our
ability to do works during the day, rather than more expensive night works.
Total Highways & Transport Services
Overspend in coroner service offset by hgh vacancy rate
Total Regulatory Services

(225)

Underspend on new Sexual Health contract & delayed data made forecasting difficult. Volumes lower than
provider estimated, plus COVID impact.
Underspend on NHS Health Checks - GP Fed provider struggled to achieve targets due to NHS reconfiguration, which led to underperformance - mitigated mid-year with re-negotiation of contract based on
PBR
Underspend on Children’s Health Service. Staffing vacancies, now being addressed through recruitment
drive. Budget held for potential further IT costs, not required at year end.
Staff underspend - PH Consultant not recruited in 19/20

(264)

Transfer of underspend Public Health grant to Public Health reserve
Total Public Health
Underspend on Concessionary Fares
Underspend on the S&I Team - higher than expected income from CCG for CHC.
Underspend on Libraries & Heritage. Management restructure and vacancies held. Identification of income
from external users not previously received
Underspend on Leisure Services. Revised management fees inflated by CPI in 19/20 - not reflected in
budget.
Underspend on Wellbeing mgmt. Staff transfer to Peoples and no training costs incurred
Taxicard lower management charges and 18/19 refund from London Councils
Set aside for successful Culture bid
Other variances
Total Wellbeing
Overspend costs associated with in-sourcing the previously commissioned comms service, with notable
items including agency staffing and creative and design expenditure.
Overspend within Commissioning Practice & Quality is due to LSCB contribution projected funding
corrections, and £12k extra expenditure in relation to serious case reviews.
Other variances
Underspend within Corporate Commissioning a reduction of 7k in respect of extra expenditure around
business change projects.
Underspend within Outcomes Commissioning in respect of winter pressures funding not previously
projected.
Total Wellbeing

(664)
(0)
(208)
(133)
(108)

Resources
Business Services

Insurance underspend, staff savings within support functions

Property Services

Staff savings within support functions
Other variances
Total Business Services
Asset Management, mainly a reduction in MRP projections and increased income from rent reviews

(200)
(146)
(81)
(427)
(286)
(102)
(76)
(74)
(538)
(75)
(75)
(103)
(91)

Environment & Community Safety

Housing & Regeneration

Highways & Transport Services

Regulatory Services
Total Environment, Housing and Regeneration
Chief Executive's
Public Health

Wellbeing

Customers, Commissioning & Governance

Total Chief Executive's

Legal Services
Finance

ICT

Facilities Management - reduction in premises costs,postage and general repairs.
Underspend within Programme & Project Management
Underspend under Data & Systems
Total Property Services
Lower costs than projected and realigning of service budgets; a slight increase in income recovery of £9k
Total Legal Services
Early delivery of savings reflected in 20/21 budget
Charges to companies & Pension Fund reflecting staff time spent supporting these areas above planned
level
Delay in “go live “of counter fraud hub
External audit fees and internal audit (£42k) Underspend.
Other variances
Total Finance
£686K unachievable savings on ICT Support and services, retained Services and E-volve Digital
Programme
£130k shortfall in the income received from Street Naming and Numbering and the underspend (£115k) on
service delivery
Other variances
Total ICT
Other Resources variances

Total Resources

(152)
(50)
(327)
(350)
(114)
(83)
(380)
(164)
(107)
(56)
(327)
(313)

(313)
(46)
(46)
(113)

(140)

(140)
(120)

(95)
(75)
(43)
(35)
(24)
(673)
(105)
(37)
(14)
(32)
(32)
(92)
(581)

(54)
(40)
(36)
(252)
(686)
(130)
(114)
(702)
(40)
(550)

Corporate items
Additional government grants of £642k, mostly in respect of Section 31 Grants for business rates
allowances and reliefs in relation to the London Business Rates Pool
Reduced pensions deficit payment from other scheme employers of £190k
Other variances

Total Net Underspend

(642)
(190)
(213)
(239)
(510)

Agenda Item 7

Page 50

Page 51

Agenda Item 7

2019/20 Recommended Non Grants Carry Forwards to 2020/21
Area
People
Adult Social Care - Sutton Safeguarding Adults Board

Adults Transformation Programme
Better Care Fund

Total
Environment, Housing and Regeneration
Local Place and Engagement - Public Realm
Local Place and Engagement - Neighbourhood
Contributions
Local Place and Engagement - Event Fees & Charges
Total
Chief Executive's
Commissioning & Health Integration
Commissioning
Buildings
Total
Resources
Asset Planning, Management & Capital Delivery

Appendix B

Amount (£'000)

Description

121.4 The SSAB is funded from various partner organisations - Police, Sutton CCG, St
Helier, St George's and the Fire Service. The money is spent on training, (for
example we match-funded six sessions of Hate Crime training), campaigns
(publicity, venue, refreshments), Safeguarding Adult Reviews (payment of
Independent Thematic Reviewer).
208.0 Staffing resource which includes management and operational support to ensure
successful and complete implementation of the transformation programme.

156.8 Carry forward of unspent Better Care Fund Pooled Budget. It forms part of the
20/21 BCF Pooled Budget as agreed under the s75 agreement between LBS and
Sutton CCG.
486.2

151.8 Schemes have been agreed by committee but not completed in the financial year.
There is also the remaining unallocated revenue balances.
18.5 Contributions have been received but were not able to be fully processed and
paid out by the Council by 31 March 2020.
13.7 Contributions have been received but were not able to be fully processed and
paid out by the Council by 31 March 2020.
184.0

42.5 Contributions from participating boroughs as per partnership agreement for
management of Pan London SIB
25.0 Passing on of a charitable contribution to support match funding for Amber's Ark
former women prisoners rehabilitation project.
26.3 Materials and Labour costs to resurface MUGA at the SLC. Work was due to be
undertaken in last week of March but suspended due to COVID-19.
93.8

Total

103.2 Dilapidation income for the former nightclub on top of retail space, needed to
make the site lettable for future use.
103.2

Grand Total

867.2

This page is intentionally left blank

2019/20 Recommended Capital Budget Adjustments to 2020/21
Scheme
No

Scheme Name

E, H & R DIRECTORATE
Scheme rephasing
C033
Travellers Site - The Pastures
C100-C110 HRA - Council Stock

COMMENTS

Project to start in 2020/21
Rephasing Council Stock mainly on Fire Safety
Works, Kitchen & Bathrooms, External works, O/T
Adaptations and Energy Efficiency due to various
delays in awarding contracts, and delays caused by
Covid19.
Rephasing of LA New Build projects from 2019/20 to
cover final retention and other final payments.

Appendix D
2019/20
Variations

2020/21
Adjustments

£’000

£’000

(14)
(1,756)

(14)
(1,756)

(177)

(177)

C135

Phase 2 New Build

Planning decisions still pending on two schemes. Delays to
tender exercise as initial expression of interest generated
just one contractor. Further exercise undertaken with 5
contractors expressing interest & currently preparing for
tender, which will be conducted once the current
restrictions are lifted.

(485)

(485)

C160
C170

Property Acquisitions - HRA
Estate Regeneration

Acceleration of number of cases than budgeted

(467)
(75)

(467)
(75)

E002

Pavements Improvements

Rephasing required to fund additional works in Harcourt
Field in 20/21

(38)

(38)

E003

Renovation Grants

Rolling programme of grant works that has been funded
from DFG scheme due to changes in eligibility. Rephasing
required to allow to cover those applications not covered by
DFG.

(145)

(145)

E004

Street Lighting

Rephasing required to cover cost of works due suspended
due Covid 19 related issues.

(39)

(39)

E005

Highway Resurfacing

Due to additional revenue funding in Q4 of 2019/20
rephasings required and amount will be spent in 2020/21

(152)

(152)

E018

Mandatory Disabled Facilities Grant

Increased demand to cover smaller works and adaptations
to homes.

(238)

(238)

Rephasing is mainly due to the delay in commencing the
refurbishment works for the Town Centre Engagement Hub

Agenda Item 7

Regeneration of Richmond Green - LA New Build

Page 53

C130

Scheme
No

Scheme Name

COMMENTS

Nature Conservation
Town Centre Masterplan

Minor rephasing to fund small project in 2020/21

E170
E185

Flood Resistance & Resilience Measures
South London Waste - Inter Authority Agreement

Rephasing due to past budget being overstated.

E191

Beddington Park - Heritage Lottery Fund

Further rephasing due to main contractor gone in to
administration and working to ascertain final liability.

E220
E221
E222
E223
E224
E225
E227
E228
E229
E231
E241

Public Realm - Worcester Park
Public Realm - Sutton Area
Public Realm - Cheam & Belmont
Public Realm - St.Helier, The Wrythe & Wandle Valley
Public Realm - Carshalton
Public Realm - Beddington & Wallington
General S106 - Sutton Local Committee
General S106 - Cheam & Belmont Local Cttee
General S106 - St.Helier, The Wrythe & Wandle Valley
General S106 - Beddington & Wallington
Unauthorised encampments on Council Land

E248

Weekly Waste Collection Scheme

E255

Area Wide Parking Scheme

2019/20
Variations

2020/21
Adjustments

£’000

£’000
(3)
(7)

(3)
(7)

(41)
(121)

(41)
(121)

(76)

(76)

(10)
(2)
(28)
(2)
(2)
(37)
(8)
(10)
(20)
(14)
(27)

(10)
(2)
(28)
(2)
(2)
(37)
(8)
(10)
(20)
(14)
(27)

Delays with projects and joint funding required for SHP
contamination work

(15)

(15)

Rephasing due works delays in works for RJ Dance not
raised on time and works planned for 19/20 start were
subsequently deferred because of COVID-19 pandemic.

(73)

(73)

The final stage works affected by COVID-19 restrictions
and due to resume once restrictions are lifted.
Rephasing due to the implementation of third party land
due in 2020-21, the CPO confirmed in February 2020 and
site possession in August 2020.

Public Realm not fully allocated or committed during
2019/20 and to be delivered in 2020/21

Rephase S106 projects to 2020/21 so that proposals
can be reviewed and agreed for progress
Delay to works but budget still required to carry out target
hardening to prevent unauthorised encampments on
Council Land

Page 54

E058
E145

Appendix D

Agenda Item 7

2019/20 Recommended Capital Budget Adjustments to 2020/21

2019/20 Recommended Capital Budget Adjustments to 2020/21
Scheme
No

Scheme Name

COMMENTS

Structural & Cosmetic Repairs to Multi Storey Car
Parks

Minor rephasing to 2020/21

E259
E261

Parks Improvements
Beddington Routes & Places - Industrial Areas

Minor rephasing to 2020/21

E272
E274

Reinstate moving traffic enforcement
Sutton Cemetery Works

Small rephasing to 2020/21

E275

SUDS Programme

Additional costs is due to the expansion of the scheme
which will be covered by external funding

Other adjustments
Lavender Project

C100-C110 HRA - Council Stock - Energy Efficiency

C100-C110 HRA - Council Stock

£’000
(42)

2020/21
Adjustments
£’000
(42)

(3)
(15)

(3)
(15)

(1)
(11)

(1)
(11)

(90)

(90)

(2,650)

(2,650)

Unbudgeted expenditure funded from Clarion
Housing Association

(23)

(0)

Spend budgeted for 19/20 funded by GLA grant
towards the Mayor of London Energy Leap project for
retrofit zero energy homes
Budgeted spend in 2019/20 funded by reduced
Leaseholders Contributions

(26)

(0)

(118)

(0)

Reflecting the overall scheme implementation and delays
caused by utilities. CPO confirmed in February 2020 and
site possession in August 2020.
Delay to some of the works but budget still required to deal
with path safety problems at the cemetery

Total rephasing - E, H & R

C004

2019/20
Variations

Regeneration of Richmond Green - LA New Build
Phase 1

Reduced spend in final spend funded by disposals

(42)

(0)

C130

Regeneration of Richmond Green - LA New Build
Phase 1

Vire Net HRA Borrowing to C131 & C132

(22)

(0)

C131
C131

Ludlow Lodge - LA New Build Phase 1
Ludlow Lodge - LA New Build Phase 1

Reprofile of expenditure funded by RTB income
Vire HRA Borrowing to C130

(161)
(50)

(0)
(0)

Agenda Item 7

C130

Page 55

E257

Appendix D

Scheme
No

Scheme Name

COMMENTS

Fellowes Road - LA New Build Phase 1
Fellowes Road - LA New Build Phase 1
Phase 2 New Build
Renovation Grants
Mandatory Disabled Facilities Grant
TfL - Corridors
Transport Related S106
TfL - Public Realm

Reprofile of expenditure funded by RTB income
Vire HRA Borrowing from C130
Reprofile of expenditure funded by RTB income
Unbudgeted spend funded by empty property grant
Unbudgeted spend funded by DFG Refunds
Vire Local TfL from E224 as not needed
Additional spend funded by S106
Vire Local TfL to E136 as not needed by local
committee

E245
E257

Access Work in the Beddington SIL
Structural & Cosmetic Repairs to Multi Storey Car
Parks

Vire from E261 to cover overspend
Expenditure funded by Insurance monies

E261
E275

Beddington Routes & Places - Industrial Areas
SUDS Programme

E275
E275

2019/20
Variations
£’000
(106)
(72)
(13)
(39)
(80)
(3)
(11)
(3)

2020/21
Adjustments
£’000
(0)
(0)
(0)
(0)
(0)
(0)
(0)
(0)

(5)
(40)

(0)
(0)

Vire to E245 to cover overspend
Additional expenditure due to expansion of scheme
funded by S106

(5)
(9)

(0)
(0)

SUDS Programme

Additional expenditure due to expansion of scheme
funded by Other Public Bodies grants

(60)

(0)

SUDS Programme

Additional expenditure due to expansion of scheme
funded by EA Flood Levy

(185)

(0)

(355)

(0)

(2,295)

(2,650)

Total other adjustments - E, H & R
TOTAL E, H & R DIRECTORATE
PEOPLE DIRECTORATE
Scheme rephasing

Page 56

C132
C132
C135
E003
E018
E136
E166
E224

Appendix D

Agenda Item 7

2019/20 Recommended Capital Budget Adjustments to 2020/21

2019/20 Recommended Capital Budget Adjustments to 2020/21
Scheme
No

Scheme Name

COMMENTS

Care Leavers Accommodation
NDS Devolved Formula Capital
Foster/Respite Carers - Building Adaptations

Additional works expected in 20/21

L112

Capital Maintenance

Three school projects were delayed and will now be
progressed in this financial year

L113

Primary Expansions Phase I - September 2009 to
2011

L114
L115
L116

Schools' expenditure was slightly more than estimated.
Budget included significant slippage from previous year,
further needs were identified and the accumulated balance
has reduced.

2019/20
Variations
£’000
(14)
(21)
(29)

2020/21
Adjustments
£’000
(14)
(21)
(29)

(112)

Minor rephasing Barrow Hedges

(12)

(12)

Primary Expansions Phase II - September 2012
Primary Expansions Phase III - September 2013
Primary Expansions Phase IV - September 2014

Minor rephasing Cheam Common Junior
Minor rephasing Bandon Hill
Rephasing of Cheam Park Farm Schools and
Hackbridge Primary

(3)
(6)
(44)

(3)
(6)
(44)

L118

Secondary Expansions - September 2016

(342)

(342)

L119

SEN Expansions

Advance payments to secondary schools for bulge classes
anticipated to be made before year end were actually paid
in April 2020 after agreements had been formalised with
the schools.
Release of retention for Sherwood Hill has been delayed
pending satisfactory completion of remedying defects.

(66)

(66)

L138

Early Years Capital Grant

Some internal fees for this project were not charged in
2019 but will be charged shortly.

(12)

(12)

L140

Healthy Pupils Capital Fund

One commitment still remains to be claimed, there is no
spend deadline on this grant.

(1)

(1)

(620)

(620)

(12)

(0)

Total rephasing - People

L113

Other adjustments
Primary Expansions Phase I - September 2009 to
2011

Unbudgeted spend on Barrow Hedges Primary
funded by S106 income

Agenda Item 7

(112)

Page 57

C530
L011
L076

Appendix D

Scheme
No

Scheme Name

COMMENTS

Appendix D
2019/20
Variations

2020/21
Adjustments

£’000

£’000

Primary Expansions Phase III - September 2013

Unbudgeted spend on Bandon Hill Primary funded by
S106 income

(6)

(0)

L116

Primary Expansions Phase IV - September 2014

Unbudgeted spend on Hackbridge Primary funded by
Insurance

(66)

(0)

L118

Secondary Expansions - September 2016

Costs for Temporary School at Belmont to take to planning
were more than originally profiled for 2019.

(22)

(0)

L119

SEN Expansions

Unbudgeted spend on Sherwood Park Scheme
funded by additional S106

(6)

(0)

L135
L139

Building Adaptations Looked after Children
Children Centre - Victor Seymour

Increase in spend on invest to save projects

(6)
(9)

(0)
(0)

Total other adjustments - People

(109)

(0)

TOTAL PEOPLE DIRECTORATE

(511)

(620)

(153)
(86)

(153)
(86)

(399)

(399)

(14)
(32)

(14)
(32)

(62)

(62)

Underspend funded from revenue not needed

C523
R013

RESOURCES DIRECTORATE
Scheme rephasing
Adult Social Services ICT Replacement
Information Management - Corporate IT Refresh

R054

Digital IT Programme

Underspend is a combination of the delay in starting of the
Customer Platform and the projects identified in 19/20 did
not require all the funding available to the programme.

R055
R150

ATS Recruitment System Joint with Kingston
Corporate Energy and Water Efficiency

Expenditure previously rephased spent in 19/20

R150

Corporate Energy and Water Efficiency

LED lighting to be rolled out during 2020/21 following trial
in 2019.

Review of plan of development in progress
The decommissioning element of this project progressed
quicker than expected.

Minor energy saving projects to be carried out during
2020/21

Page 58

L115

Agenda Item 7

2019/20 Recommended Capital Budget Adjustments to 2020/21

2019/20 Recommended Capital Budget Adjustments to 2020/21
Scheme
No

Scheme Name

COMMENTS

Expenditure on Corporate & Operational Buildings

Works at Civic to remove floor tiles has been delayed but
will be progressed in 2020/21

R162

Civic Offices Upgrade & Re-equip

Funding to be used for further improvements during
2020/21

R163

Denmark Road Accommodation Changes

Funding committed to replace asbestos bearing tiles on 1st
floor but nature of works prevented completion before year
end.

R165
R168
R170

Energy Efficiency Improvements to IPP
Solar Power PV Installation - Civic
Beddington Park Listed Wall - H & S

Delay in start on site
Further Solar Power schemes being investigated

R171

Council Sites - Protection Works

Plans for Lower Square changed in light of Covid 19
measures

Delayed start to repair works due to planning condition
requirements. Order now issued and works should
complete during 2020/21.

Total rephasing - Resources

R165

Commercial Investment Portfolio

Additional retention release and fees for IPP'S not
budgeted

R166

Russettings Building Improvements

Small increase in spend not anticipated funded from
general resources

R193

CCG Refit at Civic Offices

Total other adjustments - Resources

Vire to R048 to fund overspend
Additional spend was as a result of response to Covid
where level of end user devices was increased to support
home working - funded by virement from R013

Overspend funded by CCG due to additional costs for
build of £8k and furniture of £6k

£’000
(91)

2020/21
Adjustments
£’000
(91)

(42)

(42)

(6)

(6)

(55)
(10)
(59)

(55)
(10)
(59)

(10)

(10)

(819)

(819)

(58)
(58)

(0)
(0)

(248)

(0)

(5)

(0)

(14)

(0)

(267)

(0)

Agenda Item 7

R013
R048

Other adjustments
Information Management - Corporate IT Refresh
ICT Infrastructure

2019/20
Variations

Page 59

R152

Appendix D

Scheme
No

Scheme Name

COMMENTS

TOTAL RESOURCES DIRECTORATE

Appendix D
2019/20
Variations

2020/21
Adjustments

£’000

£’000

(552)

(819)

(62)
(20)

(62)
(20)

E190

Whitehall - Heritage Lottery Fund

We are now in the phase of delivering services and
activities and have no further capital expenditure.
Underspend is being used to fund reduction in lottery
funding.

(59)

(59)

E254

Works to Little Holland House

A project plan is in place for this financial year to complete
works to improve access to the House with a view to
securing external funding opportunities for new services.

(63)

(63)

E276

Sutton Life Centre essential projector replacement
programme

All projectors have been installed. The project is now in the
'snagging' phase.

(31)

(31)

(235)

(235)

(17)

(0)

Main works to generate savings still to following
There have been difficulties getting sub contractors back to
repair defects. An approach to other roofing contractors
was frustrated by the Covid 19 emergency but will be
pursued when possible so that works can be completed.

Total rephasing - Chief Executives

C529

Other adjustments
Convert Wallington Library for co-location of Health
and Social Care

No further spend so balance of funding not required

Page 60

C527
E117

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTORATE
Scheme rephasing
Assistive Technology Social Care
Cheam Leisure Centre

Agenda Item 7

2019/20 Recommended Capital Budget Adjustments to 2020/21

2019/20 Recommended Capital Budget Adjustments to 2020/21
Scheme
No

Scheme Name

Total other adjustments - Chief Executive
TOTAL CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTORATE
GRAND TOTAL

COMMENTS

Appendix D
2019/20
Variations
£’000
(17)

2020/21
Adjustments
£’000
(0)

(252)

(235)

(3,610)

(4,324)

Page 61
Agenda Item 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 63

Agenda Item 8

Report to:

Strategy and Resources

Report title:

The London Cancer Hub - Update

Report from:

Richard Simpson, Strategic Director of Resources

Ward/Areas affected:

Belmont

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:

Cllr Ruth Dombey, Leader of the Council
Cllr Jayne McCoy, Deputy Leader of the Council

Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):

Kathryn Carr, Assistant Director, Amanda Cherrington, Head of
Economic Renewal and Regeneration

Corporate Plan
Priorities:

Open/Exempt:
Signed:

●
●
●
●

Date:

8 June 2020

Being Active
Making Informed Choices
Living Well Independently
Keeping People Safe

Open
Date:

27 May 2020

1. Summary
1.1

The London Cancer Hub is a key project for the Council and an important part of our ‘Ambitious
for Sutton’ vision. This report seeks authority to proceed with the proposed next phase of
development at the LCH, focused on the direct delivery by the Council of a new innovation hub
in an existing, Council owned building on the site. The report also describes how the Council is
taking forward the learning from the procurement process initiated in 2019 and explains how the
project has been adapted in response to changing circumstances.

2. Recommendations
2.1

To approve the direct delivery of the next phase of development at the London Cancer Hub, as
detailed in this report.

2.2

To delegate authority to the Strategic Director of Resources to award all contracts necessary to
deliver the next phase of development at the London Cancer Hub, including demolition and
public realm works on site and construction works to convert Cumbrian House into an
innovation hub.

2.3

To approve the sealing of the Strategic Investment Pot grant agreement between the City of
London Corporation and the Council, for the London Cancer Hub award of £8.38m.

Agenda Item 8

Page 64

3. Background
3.1

The London Cancer Hub (LCH) is a partnership between the Institute of Cancer Research (ICR)
and the London Borough of Sutton (LBS), supported by the Royal Marsden, the Mayor of
London, Epsom and St Helier University Hospitals NHS Trust and One Public Estate. The
partnership was established to transform Sutton’s existing life-science site into a world-leading
campus specialising in cancer research, treatment, education and enterprise.

3.2

The fully developed cancer hub has been estimated to contribute c.£1.2bn each year to the UK
economy and deliver substantial benefits for the borough. It will create opportunities for
sustainable economic growth and local employment in the key STEM (science, technology,
engineering and maths) sector. It is expected to create more than 13,000 jobs in total – 7,000
permanent jobs at the Sutton site and 6,200 jobs during construction. It will generate new
revenue for the borough, including a projected £13m in additional business rates, and act as a
catalyst for broader changes that will benefit Sutton residents, such as local transport
improvements.

3.3

In 2017 the Council appointed commercial advisors and began to assemble the site for the LCH
including the acquisition of a 4.8ha plot of land in 2018. The LCH is a unique project within a
specialised sector and it was therefore decided to seek a private sector investor/developer
partner to secure the funding and expertise needed to deliver the next phase of development.
As a unique scheme, with a mix of commercial development alongside a specific cancer
research and drug discovery focus, the Council recognised that there would be a limited number
of potential partners with the experience and skills across the full range of requirements.

3.4

The Council commenced its search for a development partner in September 2019 through an
EU compliant (OJEU) process. Two bidders were assessed as having sufficient financial,
technical and professional standing to be invited to participate in the competitive dialogue stage
of the procurement. Subsequently, one bidder progressed to the final stage. They proposed to
deliver the next phase of development through an income strip model whereby the bidder would
secure the funding, but required the Council to underwrite this by guaranteeing 75% of rental
income over the 35 years lifetime of the lease. The rationale underpinning this model as the
only available option was that by minimising the risk of return and securing their developer profit
the bidder increased the viability of the scheme. However, this model undermines one of the
Council’s key objectives in procuring a partner who would fund the development on a standard
risk and reward model basis. Taking the development forward in this way would expose the
Council to greater financial risk for many years.

3.5

The Council’s commercial advisors urged caution on pursuing this delivery model. Their
concerns related to both the financial risk to the Council and their lack of confidence, following
extended dialogue, that the sector specialism required was sufficiently demonstrated by the
bidder. As a result, the advisors questioned the added value offered to the Council by this
proposal, particularly given the long-term financial risk.

3.6

It was therefore agreed with the bidder in early March to pause and reflect on the procurement
process in order to consider next steps.

Page 65

3.7

Agenda Item 8

During the procurement process to identify an investment partner, the Council submitted a bid to
the Strategic Investment Pot (SIP), coordinated by the City of London to encourage economic
growth, to support the delivery of building and infrastructure costs at the LCH. The bid was
successful and the Council secured a significant award of £8.38m for these purposes.
Options Analysis

3.8

The pause has given the Council time to consider the best way forward for both the LCH
development and the borough. This has allowed a thorough review of the commercial proposal
presented by the bidder and an analysis of alternative delivery models. This has been supported
by dialogue with legal, financial, property and sector specialist advisors. An options appraisal
was developed which ranged from running a new procurement process on a different
proposition, to incorporating residential development to subsidise the core science offer.

3.9

The global outbreak of the Covid19 pandemic coincided with the agreement to pause the
procurement process. As such it was necessary to consider this as a further, and key, factor in
evaluating how best to take the LCH development forward. While the full impacts of Covid19
will be better understood as the country starts to emerge from the crisis, it is clear that the global
economy will face unprecedented challenges over the short to medium term. The climate of
uncertainty is expected to reduce the appetite for risk among investors, developers and
contractors alike. This reinforced the case for a careful review of the most prudent and diligent
approach to the delivery of the LCH, to achieve best use of public funds while maintaining the
opportunities and benefits of the scheme for Sutton’s local economy.

3.10 In this context, the Council acting as the developer to directly deliver a smaller scale next phase
of development provides the optimum solution. The availability of the £8.83m SIP grant is an
unprecedented opportunity for the Council to respond quickly to the changing landscape in
order to harness emerging sector demand for such provision. This approach minimises the
Council’s exposure to financial risk and makes best use of one-off grant funding. It was
therefore decided not to proceed with the procurement of a development partner at this time.
3.11 However, it is important to note that the procurement process of itself was beneficial in a
number of ways. As a learning experience for colleagues within the Council, it provided useful
lessons that can be applied to any future LCH partner procurement. It also communicated
Sutton’s clear commitment to the LCH concept and its serious intent to deliver the development.
This undoubtedly raised the profile of the LCH development among key target audiences,
including public funding bodies. To this end, while procurements always incur costs, in this case
the spend was key to the Council securing the £8.38m SIP grant.
4. Next Steps
4.1

The LCH’s unique vision enables enterprise and research innovation sectors to be co-located
with world leading scientists and clinicians. Attracting the right businesses from the scientific
spin out and research community is therefore critical to its successful delivery. While the
Covid19 pandemic is widely anticipated to change the global availability of investment capital

Agenda Item 8

Page 66

and the appetite for risk for some time, it has also emphasised the critical role of scientific
research to the national economy. Initial soft market testing by expert advisors confirms these
twin drivers are likely to steer sector demand towards the provision of smaller-scale, more
flexible provision for the foreseeable future.
4.2

The award of the £8.38m SIP grant allows the Council to capitalise on the changing and more
incremental nature of development now anticipated. This will be achieved by transforming
Council owned Cumbrian House on the site into a new innovation hub. The re-purposed building
will provide affordable incubation space immediately adjacent to the ICR, enabling start-up and
spin-out companies, along with teams from larger enterprises, to work closely with, and learn
from, world-class academic scientists. In fostering organic growth, evidencing demand and
creating a pipeline of occupiers for future phases of larger, new build development the
innovation hub will facilitate the sustainable growth of the UK science sector. Building on
learning from the procurement process and utilising the market intelligence drawn from this next
phase of Council delivered development, the LCH partnership will be able to identify the best
mechanism for delivering the full development as envisioned, including the larger Knowledge
Centre, at the appropriate time.

4.3

Plans will therefore be drawn up to create the new innovation hub alongside the demolition of
some redundant buildings, to improve visibility and movement around the site, plus a package
of works to upgrade the public realm. The costs of this first phase of development will be
contained entirely within the SIP funding envelope, removing the need for further borrowing.
This is undoubtedly the most prudent and effective use of public funding, offering the lowest
risk/highest impact short to medium term solution. It will kick start delivery, while allowing the
Council to further manage risk for the longer term development phases.
5. Conclusions and Recommended Way Forward

5.1

The Council carried out a robust, OJEU compliant procurement process focused on a clear
proposition and the competitive dialogue was very constructive. As the process progressed, it
became clear there were better delivery models for the LCH. The insight gained through the
process, and the £8.38 SIP award which reduced the requirement for private sector borrowing,
opened up new opportunities for direct delivery of the scheme. It was therefore decided to
review the Council’s position and not to appoint a commercial partner to develop the LCH at this
time.

5.2

The optimum delivery route, taking account of all relevant factors now and in the foreseeable
future, is the recommended option whereby the Council will act as the developer to deliver a
smaller scale first phase of development. The original vision for the full development remains
and will be reinforced by the incremental, re-phasing of delivery that is appropriate at this time.

5.3

The ICR fully supports this approach. They are keen to make early progress to create certainty
in order to harness sector demand for this type of provision. In tandem, to maximise the
benefits of the investment, the Council and ICR will build new, and strengthen existing, local
business supply chains.

Page 67

Agenda Item 8

6. Impacts and Implications

6.1

Financial
Since April 2018, £349,062.59 has been spent on external legal and commercial advice relating
to the procurement of an investor/developer for the site. This has included developing an OJEU
compliant procurement strategy, documentation and soft market testing. They have also
provided the Council with commercial advice and legal support throughout the dialogue
meetings (including negotiating Heads of Terms and financial structures to bring forward the
development).

6.2

In 2016, Sutton was successful in its application to the One Public Estate programme. OPE is a
national programme delivered by the Cabinet Office and the Local Government Association to
provide support and funding to councils to deliver surplus public sector partnership land
programmes. OPE awarded grant funding of £550,000 to Sutton to deliver work across a range
of areas to bring forward the London Cancer Hub. In total, £208,151.03 of this funding has been
used to offset procurement costs incurred by the Council. The remaining funding has been met
from the Council’s budget.

6.3

A successful bid was submitted to the Strategic Investment Pot - 2019/20 for £8.38m to help
prepare the site for development through demolition, infrastructure and public realm works.

6.4

Currently design and scoping is underway. The change of use alterations and refurbishment to
provide laboratory and associated spaces for Cumbrian House is estimated to be around £1.7m.
For demolition and public realm improvements including improved signage, lighting and
way-finding the costs would be in the region of £1.3m. Design works are currently being
undertaken, followed by procurement.
Legal

Legal Implications provided by Trowers & Hamlins LLP
6.5 The Council has powers to secure the proper planning of its area. Local authorities have the
power to do anything that an individual may do pursuant to section 1 of the Localism Act 2011.
This is referred to as the "general power of competence". The Council may use this power for
its own purpose, a commercial purpose and/or for the benefit of others.
6.6

Local authorities have the power to enter into contracts pursuant to section 1 of the Local
Government (Contracts) Act and to invest pursuant to section 12 of the Local Government Act
2003, provided this is consistent with the Council's investment strategy. This gives the Council
the power to fund and deliver the first phase of development at the London Cancer Hub (the
LCH). This would include the ability for the Council to carry out demolition and public realm
works on site and construction works to convert Cumbrian House into an innovation hub.

6.7

The Council would retain control over the first phase of the development. This would enable the
Council to work with the ICR (its Partner), and the Royal Marsden, and Epsom and St Helier
University Hospitals NHS Trust (the Stakeholders) to shape the development of the first phase

Page 68

Agenda Item 8

of the LCH. This could significantly reduce the complexity of the development and any ongoing
management arrangements.
6.8

The Council would also have the ability to control lettings, and set rents. In order to comply with
the Council's fiduciary duty to obtain value for money and State aid law, we would advise the
Council to set rent rates for the innovation hub at market rate or in accordance with State aid
exemptions.

6.9

The Council may also benefit from the long-term income stream produced by the retention
Cumbrian House.

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix letter

Title
None

Background documents
None

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 27 May 2020

Finance

Yes

Richard Simpson

Legal

Yes

Fabiola Hickson

Equality Impact Assessment
required?

No

N/A

Consultation with other officers

Page 69

Agenda Item 9

Report to:

Strategy and Resources Committee

Report title:

Education Update Report: Written Statement of Action

Report from:

Nick Ireland, Strategic Director of People Services

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough Wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Corporate Plan Priorities:

Councillor Marian James, Chair of the People Committee

Open/Exempt:
Signed:

Date:

8 June 2020

Fiona Phelps, Assistant Director, Education and SEND, 020 8770 4604
●
●
●
●
Open

Being Active Citizens
Making Informed Choices
Living Well Independently
Keeping People Safe

Date:

26 May 2020

1.

Summary

1.1.

Children, young people and their families are at the centre of Sutton’s ambition to ensure that its
residents can make informed choices about their lives, to stay active, to live well independently
and to stay safe.

1.2.

The Local Area partnership of the London Borough of Sutton, education settings and Cognus
education services, parents and young people, Health and other colleagues, is working
collaboratively to ensure the best possible outcomes for young people can be achieved. This
effective Local Area partnership work has resulted in significant improvements in the provision
and impact of services for children and young people with Special Educational Needs and
Disabilities (SEND). This report highlights the success as reported in the recent Ofsted and the
Care Quality Commission Revisit.

2.

Recommendations

2.1.

To note the outcome of the recent Revisit of Her Majesty’s Inspectorate (HMI) for Ofsted and
the Care Quality Commission (CQC) in March 2020.

3.

Background

3.1.

Since the commencement of the Written Statement of Action (WSOA) in July 2018, the People
Committee has provided scrutiny and challenge regarding the progress of the implementation of

Agenda Item 9

Page 70

the Children and Families Act 2014, with a specific focus on the three areas of significant
weakness identified in the SEND Local Area Inspection in January 2018.
3.2.

This report provides an update on the relevant developments in the Local Area and specifically,
on the judgements of the Inspectors on the progress made.

4.

Issues

4.1.

As detailed in previous reports for the People Committee, the SEND Local Area Inspection in
Sutton (January 2018) offered local area leaders from Education, Health and Social Care, an
opportunity - and a mandate - to focus efforts on improving SEND services and practice in
Sutton. As noted in HMI’s letter in response to our submission, the Written Statement of Action
(WSOA) provided a “comprehensible framework” identifying relevant actions already taken, 27
proposed future actions with timescales for completion. The three key weaknesses identified
during the inspection formed the focus for the statement with “Local Area leaders considering
them carefully and thoroughly and ensuring that measures of success were mainly focused on
impact”.

4.2.

Between 2 and 4 March 2020, Sutton received its Joint Area SEND Revisit from Ofsted and
CQC. The purpose of the Revisit was to determine whether the Local Area had made “sufficient
progress” (this is the specific and sole criterion) in addressing each area of serious weakness as
detailed in the WSOA.

4.3.

Inspectors met with parents and professionals from across the Local Area, leaders from
education settings, and children and young people from a range of settings. They studied all the
evidence presented, listened carefully to the different representatives of the Local Area, and
then challenged and triangulated the information in order to reach their conclusions.

4.4.

The outcome of this revisit was published on 20 May. Because of the COVID-19 situation, this
was longer than the usual 28 working days from the last day of the Revisit.

4.5.

The outcome of the Revist can therefore now be shared, and is as attached (Appendix A). In
summary, Sutton’s Local Area has made “sufficient progress” in all three areas. The letter notes
the key findings, such as:
●
●
●

●
●
●

Leaders have secured the confidence and support of leaders in education settings there has been a ‘seismic shift’ in this area
Health professionals are visible and playing a much more significant part in addressing
the weaknesses identified at the initial inspection
Children and young people feel confident when making choices about future training and
careers and appreciate the guidance their schools give them in developing skills which
can support their social participation and independence
The number of exclusions has reduced for pupils with education, health and care (EHC)
plans in primary schools.
There is an improving level of engagement and buy-in from parents
Leaders have a secure oversight of EHC plans and EHC plans are improved in quality

Page 71

●

Agenda Item 9

The Information Advice and Support Service is functioning well and has a growing
positive reputation; caseworkers get out and about to meet parents in different settings
which is seen as a strength by provider leaders

4.6.

Therefore, as the area has made sufficient progress in addressing all the significant
weaknesses, the formal quarterly support and challenge visits from the Department for
Education and NHS England will cease: Sutton no longer has a Written Statement of Action.

4.7.

This outcome is testament to the significant change in the practice, approach and engagement
with SEND that has taken place across services, settings and organisations. Some of the more
recent developments as shared with and scrutinised by Ofsted are attached as Appendix B.

4.8.

It should also be noted that following a Revisit, fewer than half of Local Areas are deemed to
have made sufficient progress on all of their areas of weakness , so Sutton’s outcome is
notable.

4.9.

Although not the view of parents as a whole, the Outcome Letter does also record the differing
views of some parents, for example:
●
●

Some parents remain concerned that part-time timetabling is being used to distort
exclusion rates.
Some parents feel that leaders continue to lack a secure oversight of the quality and
review of plans.

4.10.

Therefore, a key focus for the Local Area now is to support parents further to ensure they have
increased confidence in the services and settings throughout the Local Area, and to continue to
focus on constructive working relationships that will allow work that is in the best interests of
children and young people to continue.

4.11.

This, and other areas that the Local Area has identified in partnership, forms the basis for the
SEND Continuous Improvement Plan that is being developed. As well as focusing on
co-production with parents and young people, improving outcomes and Preparation for
Adulthood, this will encompass further developments for the Local Offer website, joint
commissioning, the High Needs Block Review, learning and development, and quality
assurance.

4.12.

In conclusion however, the Ofsted inspection in January 2018 and the resulting WSOA acted as
an important catalyst for improvement in the Local Area. As a result, the Local Area has:
●
●
●
●
●
●

Strengthened leadership capacity and governance in the Local Area across partner
organisations
Improved how we communicate and engage across the Local Area
Improved the range and nature of the support that is available to educational settings to
support young people with SEND and those at risk of exclusion
Improved the EHC Needs Assessment processes, ensuring they are in line with the
Children and Families Act
Improved the quality of oversight and impact of EHC Plans in Sutton
Strengthened our independent information / advice and mediation services to better
support families of young people with SEND

Agenda Item 9

●
4.13.

Page 72

Improved our Local Offer website, refreshing the content and providing more up to date

This endeavour has demonstrated that by underpinning all the work with:
●
●
●
●
●
●

a clear, joint vision, co-produced with partners, including parents
a public commitment to change
area-specific knowledge and understanding
strong, committed and consistent leadership in a range of relevant areas
open, transparent communications leading to targeted (and scrutinised) actions
an outcomes-focused approach

“seismic” change for the good is possible.
5.

Options Considered

5.1.

Given that this report provides an update rather than requiring decisions, there are no options to
consider.

6.

Impact and Implications
Financial

6.1.

Sutton’s High Needs block for 2020/21 is £42.1m and this provides funding for all high needs
provisions including maintained, academies, non-maintained and independent settings.

6.2.

To support the implementation of the High Needs review, unallocated growth funding (currently
£1.4m) is proposed to be used to enhance the mainstream offer in Sutton schools. This will
provide additional devolved funding for predictable needs from September 2020 to support the
Notional SEN funding already included in the individual school budget allocations for 2020/21. It
is proposed to allocate £233k of unallocated growth funding for predictable needs in 2020/21.

6.3.

Cluster arrangements are also part of the proposed changes to help develop cross-phase joint
working practices. Additional funding of £170k is required to support this work and will be made
available in 2020/21.
Legal

6.4.

New

duties regarding provision for children and young people with special educational needs
were brought in by the Children and Families Act 2014, which came into force in September
2014. These include the replacement of statements of special educational needs with Education
Health and Care Plans (‘EHC plans’). An EHC plan is one document which sets out a child's or
young person's special educational needs; the outcomes sought for him or her; the special
educational provision required by him or her; and any health care provision and/or social care
provision reasonably required by the learning difficulties and disabilities which result in him or
her having special educational needs. The Children and Families Act also includes general
duties to support and involve children and young people; to promote the integration of
educational provision and training provision with health care provision and social care provision;
to make joint commissioning arrangements and to cooperate with partners; and to keep

Page 73

Agenda Item 9

education and care provision in the authority’s area under review and consider the extent to
which it is sufficient.
6.5.

7.

The

Minister of State for Children and Families has tasked Ofsted and the Care Quality
Commission (CQC) with inspecting local areas on their effectiveness in fulfilling their duties
under the Part 3 of the Children and Families Act. These inspections are carried out under
section 20 of the Children Act 2004.

Appendices and Background Documents

Appendix letter

Title

A

Appendix A: Letter regarding the Outcome of the Revisit

B

Appendix B: A sample of information shared and scrutinised during the
Revisit

Background documents
None

Audit Trail
Version

Final

26 May 2020

Finance

Yes

Sue Holmes

Legal

Yes

Sarah Willis

Equality Impact Assessment

No

N/A

Consultation with other officers

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 75

Agenda Item 9

Ofsted
T 0300 123 1231
Agora
Textphone 0161 618 8524
6 Cumberland Place enquiries@ofsted.gov.uk
Nottingham
www.gov.uk/ofsted
NG1 6HJ
lasend.support@ofsted.gov.uk
vvvvv.uk

4 May 2020
Nick Ireland Strategic Director of People, London Borough of Sutton
Civic Offices
St. Nicholas Way
Sutton SM1 1EA
Lucie Waters – Managing Director, Sutton Clinical Commissioning Group
Victor Roman, SEND Transformation lead (Consultant), Local Area Nominated Officer
Dear Mr Ireland and Ms Waters
Joint area SEND revisit in Sutton
Between 2 and 4 March 2020, Ofsted and the Care Quality Commission (CQC)
revisited the area of Sutton to decide whether sufficient progress has been made in
addressing each of the significant weaknesses detailed in the written statement of
action issued on 23 March 2018.
As a result of the findings of the initial inspection and in accordance with the
Children Act 2004 (Joint Area Reviews) Regulations 2015, Her Majesty’s Chief
Inspector (HMCI) determined that a written statement of action was required
because of significant areas of weakness in the area’s practice. HMCI determined
that the local authority and the area’s clinical commissioning group(s) (CCG) were
jointly responsible for submitting the written statement to Ofsted. This was declared
fit for purpose on 10 July 2018.
The area has made sufficient progress in addressing all three of the significant
weaknesses identified at the initial SEND inspection. This letter outlines our findings
from the revisit.
The inspection was led by one of Her Majesty’s Inspectors from Ofsted and a
Children’s Services Inspector from the CQC.
Inspectors spoke with children and young people with special educational needs
and/or disabilities (SEND), parents and carers, as well as local authority and National
Health Service (NHS) officers. They spoke to leaders, staff and governors about how
they are implementing the disability and special educational needs reforms.
Inspectors looked at a range of information about the performance of the area,
including the area’s self-evaluation. Inspectors met with leaders from the area for
health, social care and education. They reviewed performance data and evidence
about the local offer and joint commissioning.

Agenda Item 9

Page 76

Main findings
 The initial inspection found that there was:
‘lack of coherence and joint working between local area leaders,
agencies and schools, which is resulting in poor communication,
inconsistent opportunities for social inclusion and a high number of
exclusions, especially at primary school level’.
Area leaders have secured the confidence and support of leaders in education
settings. Leaders from these settings describe a ‘seismic shift’ in coherence
and communication since the time of the initial inspection. External partners
have offered challenge and support to area leaders. These partners agree that
area leaders have made good progress in improving joint working in the area.
Health professionals have become visible and accessible in Sutton. They are
playing a much more significant part in addressing the weaknesses identified
at the initial inspection. For example, the CCG is committed to providing the
multidisciplinary SEND team with enough capacity to ensure that the SEN
reforms are complied with.
Children and young people told us they feel confident when making choices
about future training and careers. They appreciate the guidance their school
staff give them in developing skills which can support their social participation
and independence, such as managing money and knowing how to use a
supermarket.
The number of exclusions has reduced for pupils with education, health and
care (EHC) plans in primary schools. However, there has been a rise in
exclusions of those who receive SEN support. Some parents remain concerned
that part-time timetabling is being used to distort exclusion rates. Some
schools are improving inclusion through projects such as ‘step forward’. Some
of these have been recently introduced which means their impact is hard to
measure. Other projects such as ‘maximising potential’ are more established.
School leaders told us these have helped them reflect on and share ideas
aimed at supporting children to stay at school.
Evidence from satisfaction surveys commissioned by area leaders indicates an
improving level of engagement and buy-in from parents. However, this was
not echoed in the typical views of those parents and representatives of
parents who spoke with us and responded to our survey.
Some parents are not convinced that leaders are acting in the best interests of
their children. They view the assessment and review process as continuing to
be flawed. Leaders of education settings told us that, in their experience, this
is not the view of parents as a whole. There is a need to find a way to reestablish the trust and confidence of parents and parent groups so that
constructive working relationships can work in the best interests of children
and young people.

2

Page 77

Agenda Item 9

The local area has made sufficient progress to improve this area of
significant weakness.
 The initial inspection found that there was:
‘poor oversight of quality and impact of EHC plans in meeting the
needs of children and young people’.
Leaders now have a secure oversight of EHC plans. They regularly and
capably check on the quality of completed plans. Provider leaders told us that
plans are now more helpful in securing positive outcomes for children and
young people. They also told us that the wider representation of professionals
at panel meetings means that the right children and young people are getting
an EHC plan.
EHC plans have improved in quality. They usually include clear links between
objectives and the wishes and enthusiasms of children and young people.
They typically include clearer and more simply worded aims. However, a few
we sampled still include convoluted technical language and some replication of
wording from one plan to the next. Objectives related to social development
and preparation for adulthood are more prominent than at the time of the
initial inspection. Children and young people who are not known to social care
are offered an assessment as part of the EHC process. This helps meet their
social needs more thoroughly.
Some parents, however, remain unconvinced. They feel that leaders continue
to lack a secure oversight of the quality and review of plans. Parents are
concerned that delays in annual reviews mean that outcomes and suitability of
plans are compromised. Leaders of education settings we spoke with believe
that the review process is strengthened. The area knows which EHC plans
have not been reviewed on time and have a clear plan to address this.
However, the oversight of the quality of plans which have not been reviewed
in a timely way remains a concern.
The local area has made sufficient progress to improve this area of
significant weakness.
 The initial inspection found that there was:
‘inequality of opportunity for families, which has arisen from a
serious decline in the availability of an effective independent advice
service in Sutton’.
There is now a functioning and adequately staffed service. Evaluative
feedback from users shows it has a growing positive reputation. Case workers
are busier now that parents have become more aware of the service. There
are plans to extend capacity through the current appointment process for a
service manager.
Case workers get out and about to meet parents in different settings. This is
seen as a strength by provider leaders. There has been some work done to
3

Agenda Item 9

Page 78

think about how to make the service more appealing to young people, but this
aspect of the service remains limited in its scope.
The local area has made sufficient progress to improve this area of
significant weakness.
As the area has made sufficient progress in addressing all the significant
weaknesses, the formal quarterly support and challenge visits from the Department
for Education and NHS England will cease.
Yours sincerely

Andrew Wright
Her Majesty’s Inspector

Ofsted

Care Quality Commission

Michael Sheridan

Ursula Gallagher

Regional Director

Deputy Chief Inspector, Primary Medical
Services, Children Health and Justice

Andrew Wright

Elizabeth Fox

HMI Lead Inspector

CQC Inspector

cc:

Department for Education
Clinical commissioning group(s)
Director Public Health for the area
Department of Health
NHS England

4

Page 79

Agenda Item 9

Appendix B
A sample of information shared and scrutinised during the Revisit
1.

Throughout the Local Area the change has been significant: all 27 actions have been
completed, and whilst some have required far more work than originally estimated,
the majority of the resulting developments have now become ‘business as usual’.

2. Leaders throughout the Local Area are now engaged in the SEND improvement
journey, and communication about SEND is a priority at the highest level.
Approaches and practice in services and education settings have changed, and there
is now far greater co-ownership of ways to meet needs and joint decision-making.
This update represents some of the evidence discussed with Ofsted and CQC during
the visit.
3. The Local Area Education Bulletin, in place from September 2018, has been well
received. This has a wide range of contributors from across the Area, and has
brought a consistency and reach to the way the Local Area communicates about
SEND and education related issues. The readership has grown by almost 80% since
its introduction, and includes all stakeholders, comprising, amongst many others,
elected members, CEOs of Multi Academy Trusts, Head Teachers, Special Education
Needs Coordinators (SENCos), Designated Safeguarding Leads (DSLs), Health and
Social Care staff, the Chief Executive of the London Borough of Sutton and the
Managing Director of Sutton Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG).
4. Results from our Local Area Survey showed that more than half of professionals that
responded (59.3%) feel that communications from Local Area leaders have improved
since the WSOA was published. This was an increase of 21.5% on the baseline
survey in November 2018.
5. In partnership with Sutton Parent Carer Forum, ‘Paving the Way’ - a jointly
commissioned service between the CCG and London Borough of Sutton which
focuses on identification and intervention for children with social communication
difficulties - invited parents and carers to attend a feedback session held in the Civic
Library. The feedback was very positive: out of the 15 parents that were present at
the feedback session and who responded, 13 felt the service was ‘excellent’ and the
remaining 2 felt it was ‘good’.

Agenda Item 9

Page 80

6. The Local Area now systematically tracks the timescales for decision making and
requests for professionals’ advice: this has significantly increased the number of
Education, Health and Care (EHC) Plans that are completed within the statutory 20
week timescale. By the time of the Revisit, 99% of EHC Plans had been issued within
the 20 week timescale.

7. The dependence on the independent or non-maintained (INM) sector within
education continued to reduce (i.e more needs being met locally): This is important
because it means that more pupils attend local provision in their local communities,
receive consistent and joined up support from services provided locally and enables
social inclusion; these are all important aspects of preparing for adulthood.

Page 81

Agenda Item 9

8. In March 2017, 12.7% (188) of Sutton pupils with EHCPs were being educated in the
INM sector, but by January 2020, the percentage had reduced to 5.9% (108 pupils).
This is particularly notable in the light of the numbers of Plans increasing rapidly: in
March 2017 there were 1479 EHC Plans, but by the end of January 2020, there were
1832.
9. The number of parents/carers using the Sutton Information and Advice Support
Service (SIASS) increased significantly from September 2018.

10. Positive feedback from parent/carers/young people, gathered via the SIASS quarterly
survey, had increased greatly since the baseline survey was undertaken in August
2018. At that time, only 40% of users were satisfied with the service. However, the

Agenda Item 9

Page 82

last quarter data demonstrated that 82% of parents perceived the information being
provided by the service as accurate, up to date and relevant.
11. The content of the Local Offer website has since been widely refreshed and updated.
The improvements in the appearance and content of the website have increased the
number of visits and the time spent by users, as demonstrated below by the Google
Analytics data (comparisons between April-December 2018 and April-December
2020):

